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In the fiscal year of 2019/20, Ocean Park came to a critical juncture
in its over four-decade long journey. Not only did the Park look
to overcome an extremely difficult economic environment both
in Hong Kong and the wider world, it also worked diligently to
formulate new strategies for a more sustainable future.

Having always inspired its visitors with the thrill of discovering
nature, the Park is evolving to further embrace its vision as it
moves forward with an unparalleled focus on conservation and
education, a renewed emphasis on connecting with the Hong
Kong community, and a commitment to helping rebuild the local
tourism economy.

Integral to Hong Kong’s economy

Ocean Park is a hugely valuable community asset and an integral part of
the Hong Kong experience.

For 43 years, the Park has delivered countless happy moments as well as
tangible benefits for the city, offering an urban respite and recreational
space for locals, introducing innovative attractions and experiences, and
promoting tourism.
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Evolving for a Sustainable Future
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During my tenure as Chairman, Ocean Park has established an important
role in both Hong Kong’s tourism and wider economy, creating synergies
with the travel trade, hospitality, retail, food and beverage industries, and
more, to bring tens of billions of dollars in economic benefits every year,
as well as many full-time and part-time employment opportunities.

In view of the structural change in Hong Kong’s tourism industry with
Free Independent Travellers (FIT) outnumbering those arriving on group
tours, the Park has responded with a forward-looking approach and
made the necessary investments to foster long-term growth.

These include a substantial expansion of the Park’s business portfolio to
appeal to new target segments, surprise and delight the new generation
of visitors, and drive revenue opportunities.

All this has culminated in the Park’s near-complete transformation from a
homegrown theme park into the premier international resort destination
and edutainment hub that we see today, a destination
offering a unique blend of conservation, education
and entertainment experiences.
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Never stopping to evolve amidst adversity

| am proud to have led the team in delivering many milestones for the
Park throughout the years.

In the recent past, my tenure has seen a gradual increase in FIT visitors to
the Park as a result of vigorous promotional efforts in leading inbound
markets. The Park’s FIT attendance surged almost 40% from 2015/16
to 2018/19 while overnight arrivals to Hong Kong increased some 10%
only during the same period. In addition, the Park’s long-term investment
strategy of transforming into an international resort destination is now
close to achieving its goal with Hong Kong Ocean Park Marriott Hotel in
full operations. The Ocean Park Water World and The Fullerton Ocean
Park Hotel Hong Kong are also set to complete in the near future.

These developments will undoubtedly amplify the Park’s potential as a
versatile destination for multiple visits, staycations, active and wellness
holidays, family holidays, celebration holidays, as well as Meetings,
Incentives, Conventions and Exhibitions (MICE) events.

To complement this, in January 2020 the Park officially launched Gala of
Lights, an extraordinary integrated nighttime entertainment experience
featuring state-of-the-art, 360-degree water-based multimedia shows
and exciting interactive installations never before seen in Hong Kong.
The enthralling nighttime extravaganza boasts two new breathtaking
multimedia shows at the Park’s iconic The Grand Aquarium and Aqua
City Lagoon, which have been modified for the productions.
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The stellar entertainment experiences would not be complete without
some special culinary delights. Thanks to a revamped in-park dining
strategy, new and updated establishments — including food kiosks and
the Lakeside Chill alfresco dining area along the Park’s beautiful Aqua
City Lagoon, the modernised Neptune's Restaurant and the brand new
Thai restaurant Ginger Grill, Ocean Park now offers delectable gourmet
food options that will suit every taste and budget.

Coupled with thematic food and beverage and music promotions
including the well-received Chill Out @ The South, Drink’N Music Fest
and Ocean Park x Jazz World Live Series, as well as retail enhancements,
such diversification has helped boost in-park spending per capita by close
to 30% between the fiscal years of 2013/14 and 2018/19 to support the
Park’s operations.

Besides, notwithstanding the Park’s limited resources for capex
investment, creative new experiences such as virtual reality (VR) rides,
and intellectual property (IP) collaborations with SAW, Sanrio and McDull
have successfully boosted local attendance by 14% from 2017/18 to
2018/19, and the Park’s SmartFun annual pass members also surged by
more than 55% from one year ago to a record high in 2018/19.

Conservation and education at the epicentre

Elsewhere, the Park’s commitment to becoming a leading centre for
wildlife conservation and STEAM (Science, Technology, Engineering, Arts
and Mathematics) learning to help young people in Hong Kong derive
sustainable solutions for tomorrow, and to assist the local education
community to guide student development, continues to go from strength
to strength.

In fact, despite the difficulties caused by an
uncertain market outlook, the Park still heavily
expanded its conservation and education work.
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For conservation, this included the unveiling of the Hong Kong Marine
Life Stranding and Education Centre, the first attempted mating of the
Park’s giant pandas, the continuation of important animal care and
research projects, and the arrival of new animal ambassadors.

In addition, the Park has successfully extended its educational impact
beyond the Park’s premises by embracing digital technology to keep
students engaged during the COVID-19 pandemic.

Building a sustainable future

As reinvention is crucial to any organisation’s sustainable growth, in 2018
the Park kick-started a planning process aimed at engineering the Park’s
next-stage development.

Revealed in early 2020, this Strategic Repositioning Plan featured a
remodelling blueprint with adventure as the overarching theme. While
the COVID-19 pandemic casted doubts on the commercial viability of
the plan, and as a result, the Government has commenced the rethink
exercise to chart the way forward for the Park, the plan opened up
potential reimagination opportunities in the Park’s innate advantages
in terms of its geographical location, unique shorelines and waterfront
setting, not to mention the Park’s expertise and proven track record in
conservation and education.

The Park will continue playing to these core competencies and take

its role in these areas up a notch in the coming years with a focus on
offering new and sustainable experiences to visitors.
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With the unexpected and unprecedented social and economic impact
wrought across the globe by the COVID-19 pandemic, on behalf of the
Park, I would like to thank the Hong Kong Government for their funding
support of HK$5.4 billion, which has offered the Park the much needed
resources to maintain operations in the fiscal year of 2020/21 amid its
unprecedented financial difficulties.

This, in turn, has given the Park a chance to rethink and push for a new
direction to better meet the societal needs of Hong Kong in the post
COVID-19 era.

Always a special place

Looking back at the past six years of my tenure as Ocean Park’s
Chairman, | reminisce with fondness on all that the Park and Ocean Park
Conservation Foundation, Hong Kong (OPCFHK) have achieved.

I would like to express my deepest gratitude to all the people who |
have crossed paths with during my time here, including the wonderful
and dedicated Ocean Park and OPCFHK staff, various business partners,
board members, trustees, and all others who have made it such an
enjoyable experience.

Moving forward, | trust the Park would continue to transform and regain
its competitiveness in the face of intense competition and a challenging
environment post-COVID.

My deepest wish now is for Ocean Park to steer itself safely out of this most
tumultuous of times and to come out the other side better and stronger,
while continuing its proud record of contributing to Hong Kong’s position
as a world-class city once the pandemic passes.
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As | look back on my 25 years and more at Ocean Park, it is
my immense honour to have dedicated a large part of my
professional life to one of Hong Kong’s most cherished not-for-
profit institutions.

In its 43 years, the Park has grown and evolved along with its
ever-changing home city. Rooted in its commitment and
contributions to the local community, Ocean Park meets the
city’s needs not only as a theme park and entertainment centre,
but also as an invaluable education resource and an enabler for
conservation of biodiversity.

Weathering the storm

Throughout its history, the Park has dealt with the same challenges Hong
Kong faced such as the Asian financial crisis in 1997 and the Dotcom
bust at the turn of the century.

Then in the last decade, the arrival of new, well-financed theme parks
springing up across Mainland China and other parts of Asia have
completely altered the theme park and attraction industry’s competitive
landscape.

In 2019, the social incidents in Hong Kong curtailed tourism both to
the city and the Park. More serious still, the visitor plunge in 2019 was
followed by the COVID-19 pandemic that put cross-border travel and
social activities to almost a standstill.
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Embracing Change to a New Normal
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For the first time ever, the Park was forced to close for much of the first
half of 2020 in compliance with public health requirements to combat
COVID-19. The Park temporarily closed from 26 January to 12 June
2020, reopened for a month on 13 June with in-park capacity capped at
a limit of 25% for visitors to maintain social distancing.

Closing again on 14 July as a third wave of the pandemic hit the city, it
was only on 18 September that the Park could receive visitors again with
stringent public health controls of limited capacity, social distancing, and
vigorous cleaning and disinfection regimens.

Effects and implications of COVID-19

The detrimental financial impact of COVID-19 was profound. In the near
term, the idea of having fun in crowds will be reconsidered as social
distancing becomes the norm, which will also have far-reaching effects
across the entire travel and tourism sector.

Unavoidably, the Park recorded its biggest drop in year-on-year
attendance and revenue in the fiscal year of 2019/20. Even worse, the
Park had to honour a high volume of cancellations across all business
streams, reversing confirmed revenues while new business was severely
disrupted.

To mitigate the negative effects, the Park enacted prudent cost-control
measures to drive down operation costs across the board. The team
also challenged themselves to devise creative ways to engage the public
virtually when the Park was unable to serve any visitors.

To embrace what's next, it is imperative for the Park to adopt a new
business model to achieve financial sustainability without compromising
the guest experience or its commitment to conservation and education.
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Staying true to Ocean Park’s mission

| am thankful that Hongkongers have given Ocean Park’s conservation
and education work their vote of confidence. In a recent survey, the vast
majority (over 85%) of respondents support Ocean Park to continue
its operations, especially to further its contributions in animal care and
conservation, and cited conservation of precious animals, provision of a
new education space and promotion of environmental awareness as the
top reasons for their support.

As the Park shapes its new strategy for the future, change is inevitable,
but one thing that will remain constant is the Park’s inherent focus on
conservation and education.

Conservation in action

Established in 1995, Ocean Park Conservation Foundation, Hong Kong
(OPCFHK) is widely regarded as a key driving force behind wildlife
conservation in Hong Kong and across Asia. Being a founding member
of OPCFHK, | am delighted that as of 30 June 2020, the Foundation
has allocated over HK$95.2 million to fund 523 research projects on
cetaceans, giant pandas and many other species since its expansion in
2005.

Alongside the Park’s veterinary and animal specialists, the Foundation
has helped the Park earn a global reputation for advancing the science
of animal care and conservation, as well as raised awareness of the
importance of protecting biodiversity and endangered species in Asia.

Over the years, Ocean Park has been home to many conservation
programmes and efforts that have made a difference locally, regionally
and globally. I am especially proud that in 2019 the Park and OPCFHK
launched the Hong Kong Marine Life Stranding and Education Centre, a
best-in-class facility and resource for the research, study and conservation
of endangered marine animals such as Chinese white dolphins, finless
porpoises and green sea turtles.
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With its world-class science lab, diagnostics equipment and data
analytics capability, the Centre offers a platform to facilitate idea
exchange and collaboration among marine life scientists, researchers and
conservationists from around the world.

Passion for education

Other than being a catalyst of scientific pursuits, Ocean Park fosters a
passion for conservation and learning by connecting the public with
nature, igniting curiosity and empathy, and cultivating conservation
literacy. These guiding principles are interwoven into the Park’s
edutainment offerings which encompass a broad scope of topics,
learning approaches and experiences.

In the past year, like Hong Kong's schools and universities, educational
programmes at the Park had to improvise due to the pandemic. One
way the Park made good use of its knowledge and resources during
COVID-19 closures was to deliver creative videos for student engagement
on YouTube. These videos are designed to arouse children’s interest in
nature conservation while sharing tips on prevention of COVID-19.

Amassing some seven million views and more than 70,000 subscribers
since its debut in February 2020, the Redd’s Nature Play Channel is a
strong testimony to the Park’s dedication in providing immersive learning
experiences outside the classroom.

During the one-month reopening from June to July 2020, the Park also
strengthened visitors’ edutainment experiences with the launch of the
Redd's 5 Senses Discovery for young children, and the opening of the
Little Meerkat and Giant Tortoise Adventure. This new habitat presents
a wide array of experiential learning experiences that touch on all five
senses, as children learn about these African animals and their habitats,
and be inspired to respect nature and become responsible world citizens.
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Proudest highlights

In my quarter-century career with the Park, | had the honour of witnessing
and being a part of many of Ocean Park’s phenomenal achievements in
conservation and education other than those already mentioned.

A significant and personal one was the introduction of our resident
giant pandas An An and Jia Jia to Hong Kong and the Park, with both
being the world’s longest-living giant pandas under human care in their
respective genders.

Together with the subsequent arrival of Ying Ying and Le Le, the Park
has gained a precious opportunity to study giant panda behaviour, health
and reproduction, and the privilege to share best practices on panda
husbandry with other animal facilities — exemplifying the Park’s passion
and expertise in animal care.

It was also magnificent to see Ocean Park increase its educational
footprint over the years. The establishment of the Ocean Park Academy
in 2004 has cemented the Park’s collaboration with the teaching
community. Having served more than one million students to date, the
Academy has been offering diverse programmes complementing the
Education Bureau’s school curriculum framework and learning goals for
students.

Leveraging its expertise in wildlife conservation, the Park went an extra
mile to develop educational programmes with a distinctive conservation
focus. | was especially proud to have pioneered the Park’s first ecotour to
China’s Wolong National Nature Reserve that bridges in-situ and ex-situ
conservation of Sichuan wildlife, and the development of the Whiskers
& Friends Kindergarten Education Kit and the accompanying reading
carnivals that serve as conservation starters for young children.

In addition, it was a tremendous pleasure to have worked with the
team to introduce new edutainment programmes in the last few years
such as the Adventure Camps, Young Explorers Club, in-bound student
programmes, penguin feeding, and walrus and capybara encounter
programmes, which have received overwhelmingly positive feedback
from participants and parents alike.
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Equally meaningful was the opportunity to spearhead the University
Student Sponsorship Programme with OPCFHK, which has presented
424 local university students with conservation fieldwork experience via
over 170 field research projects across Asia.

Giving back to the local community

Serving the local Hong Kong community has always been key to the
Park’s ethos and my purpose in life. | am glad to have worked together
with passionate, hardworking colleagues at the Park to contribute to the
society and the planet to the best of our ability.

Every year in the past decade, about 10% to 15% of Park’s visitors have
either visited the Park for free or on welfare tickets through a wide array
of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) programmes.

Other than complimentary Park experiences, the Park’s CSR programmes
also include a wide range of initiatives supporting the United Nations’
Sustainable Development Goals of Climate Action, Responsible
Consumption and Production, Affordable and Clean Energy, Clean
Water and Sanitation, Life Below Water, Life on Land, Quality Education,
Sustainable Cities and Communities, as well as Good Health and
Well-being.

The coming year will be a time of change unlike any we have seen.
Nevertheless, | believe Ocean Park’s core values will see the Park through
to a sustainable future. Like Hong Kong, Ocean Park is ready to take on
the challenges it will face.

As | leave Ocean Park, | want to say thank you to the public, Park staff
and the Government, all of whom have helped make Ocean Park what it
is today.
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As Chairman for the 2020/21 fiscal year, | am grateful for the
opportunity to drive change at Ocean Park and help redefine the
Park’s future.

As a result, my foremost task will be to spearhead efforts
to instigate this change, and we are currently reviewing our
strategic priorities and operating model. At the same time, we
are looking at both short-term and long-term opportunities to
build upon the Park’s legacy in education and conservation,
which have been widely acknowledged and appreciated by the
public over the years, while moving away from the traditional
theme park mode of operation.

While the rethink exercise undertaken by the Government for Ocean
Park will comprehensively re-examine all aspects of the Park, not least its
financing source, operating model, legal framework and use of land, the
Park has also been experimenting with new ways to elevate its appeal
and expand its visitor base by leveraging on all that the Southern District
has to offer.

To get the ball rolling, we gathered insights from a broad-based
engagement programme covering a wide spectrum of stakeholders to
come up with a new creative strategy under the theme of An Ocean of
Extraordinary Experiences.
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Charting a New Course with a Difference
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These extraordinary experiences will tap into the Park’s magnificent
natural settings, unique topography, resources and connection with the
Southern District, and we will pilot some never-before-seen endeavours
to showcase the infinite possibilities of Ocean Park.

In fact, we have already made inroads here to offer experiences from a
totally different perspective to visitors. They can now rediscover Ocean
Park’s unigueness through our Green Staycation programme which offers
brand new experiences specially curated for all types of visitors.

Green Staycation is just the start. By immersing visitors in the environment
to inspire a deeper love for nature, and promoting local culture for an
authentic experience, we hope they will join us to reimagine Ocean
Park. With new thinking and new ways of working — we now aim to re-
establish the Park as a preferred leisure destination for locals and beyond.

Of course we would not be able to create change without support from
the local community, and | would like to thank Hongkongers for standing
by us during this most difficult period of the Park’s existence.

Likewise, | am also truly grateful to the Park’s staff and board members
for their dedication, commitment to our vision and perseverance against
all odds. As a collective, we now need to evolve to the next stage of the
Park’s development so that Ocean Park will get through the pandemic
and continue to serve generations of Hongkongers to come.

Chairman for Fiscal Year 2020/21
Lau Ming-wai ass»
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The past fiscal year has been a testing time for all, but as Chief
Executive for the 2020/21 fiscal year, | am up for the challenge
and was greatly encouraged by the generous support Ocean Park
received when we were able to open our doors to visitors after
the COVID-19 situation in Hong Kong eased slightly.

This support became apparent when entry reservations for most of the
available dates after reopening, especially weekends and public holidays,
filled up quickly and visibly demonstrated how much local demand there
is to visit the Park, not to mention how much love and care there is for it.

This love reaffirmed my belief just how deep-rooted Ocean Park is in
Hong Kong. | am more determined than ever that the Park will continue
to be a community-minded organisation, delivering offers and benefits
that cater to the needs of the different communities in our city.

In fact, Ocean Park has great potential for further development, and my
first task will be to work closely with the Board and the Ocean Park team
to bring a refreshed Park to all.

Initially with many people likely to still be hesitant to travel, the Park

will target the domestic market for the next fiscal year with an array of
exclusive promotions for local residents.
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A Much Loved Local Treasure
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We are also re-orienting the Park’s event direction towards well-being not
only to rejuvenate our offerings, but also to encourage locals to get active
and embrace the great outdoors. Our line-up of unexpected experiences
such as the Green Staycation programme promises to give visitors great
ideas for both family gatherings and hanging out with friends.

Such activities include action seekers challenging themselves with yoga
moves on a stand-up paddle board, well-being seekers meditating in
front of The Grand Agquarium viewing panel, as well as outdoor lovers
hiking up the secret trail underneath the Park’s cable cars or chilling out
in glamping tents on the Park’s Summit.

Besides health-minded activities and staycations, the Park will explore
how it can support cultural tourism, and develop tourism initiatives with
education and conservation dimensions. For example, the Park will ride
on the historical and cultural background of the Aberdeen fishing village
and other Southern District attractions to offer fun and invigorating
experiences.

With an unwavering focus on conservation and education, the Park is
also contributing further to biodiversity and animal care in Hong Kong
with new initiatives. To drive active participation in conservation of
three key local species, the Park has kick-started a new territory-wide
programme, the Ocean Park Conservation Chill Club that calls for youth
participation.
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To engage more closely with the public, we have also substantially
stepped up the ways we leverage our digital and social media platforms.
While this was initially done to keep absent Hongkongers engaged in
early 2020, our social outreach took on a new dimension after Ocean
Park was temporarily closed for a second time.

To enable fans to stay in touch with the Park’s happenings despite
closure, we utilised social channels like Facebook Live and shared fun
videos featuring the Park’s rides and cute animal ambassadors. With this
having been well received, the plan now is to continue to expand our
social media scope and build on this success.

On the financial front, given the many unknowns surrounding COVID-19
and the possibility of additional waves of infections, the Park has been
adopting proactive emergency cost-saving initiatives in a bid to thrive
in these uncertain times. These prudent measures include strict control
of operating expenses and discretionary expenses, energy conservation,
suspension of non-urgent and non-essential hires, no pay leave, salary
cuts, and more.
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Equally important, the Park is obligated to use the HK$5.4 billion funding
from the Government approved in May 2020 in an effective and cautious
way. To maintain the Park’s operations over the coming year, all revenue-
generating programmes and events will be carried out in an agile and
fast-turnaround manner to allow more flexible activation.

Last but certainly not least, as Water World moves from construction to
pre-opening phase, | will be overseeing the entire process closely and
managing the completion of Water World.

Now, as we look ahead to the future, | would like to reiterate Chairman
Lau Ming-wai's praise for all Ocean Park’s staff members who have
remained steadfast and committed to the Park and to our mission. Without
them Ocean Park would not be in the successful place it is today, and |
know how grateful the management team is for their hard work during
this difficult period. | remain confident that better days lie ahead.

Chief Executive for Fiscal Year 2020/21
Ysanne Chan
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Ocean Park is committed to ensuring a sustainable operation,
as well as playing a role in Hong Kong’s sustainable future.
The Park’s work in this regard is furthered through its strategic
operations management that puts environmental protection and
engagement with the Hong Kong community as priorities.

Ocean Park also strives to meet its corporate social responsibilities
via a wide array of initiatives that promote nature conservation,
reduce the Park’s carbon footprint, minimise pollution and
eliminate environmental hazards.

The driving force for the Park’s sustainability work has always been
people. Individuals who embrace conservation and environmental
protection are of utmost importance to building a sustainable future
— whether it is our dedicated staff who develop and implement
sustainability programmes, the visitors we engage in our edutainment
experiences, or the children we nurture in our educational programmes.

Sustainability approach

To ensure effective management of the Park’s sustainability
programmes, Ocean Park has put in place a structured management
system that encompasses a Sustainability Leadership Team overseeing
the seven subgroups of Governance, Environmental Stewardship,
Guests, Health and Safety, Employee, Community and Supply Chain.
Each subgroup is responsible for formulating programmes to meet its
goals and key performance indicators.

Introduced in 2016, this comprehensive management structure
ensures the Park’s sustainability endeavours are aligned with the United
Nations' Sustainable Development Goals of Climate Action, Responsible
Consumption and Production, Affordable Clean Energy, Clean Water
and Sanitation, Life Below Water, Life on Land, Quality Education,
Sustainable Cities and Communities, and Good Health and Well-being.

G000 KEALTH QUALITY
ANDWELL-BENG EDUCATION

1]
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Driving Sustainability Through People
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Governance

High standards of corporate governance

As a statutory body, Ocean Park is committed to the highest standards
of corporate governance, upholding the principles of accountability,
transparency and integrity to ensure the Park effectively carries out its
mandate of conservation, education and entertainment.

Led by Ocean Park’s Chief Executive, the Sustainability Leadership Team is
responsible for strategy development, monitoring and evaluation of the
Park’s sustainability performance. The Park’s internal control structure,
policies and operations procedures are reviewed regularly for adherence
to legal and regulatory requirements, and assessed against industry
standards and best practices.

Each of the subgroup’s goals and activities are integrated into the Park’s
Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) system which ensures systematic
reviews and proactive management of risks associated with the Park’s
operations.

Introduced in 2006 and revised in 2013 to align with the 1SO31000 Risk
Management Principles and Guidelines, the Park’s ERM system was last
fine-tuned in 2019 to reflect the Park’s most current operations. Park
executives are trained to adopt a risk-based approach in their work, with
ERM training sessions being held regularly for team leaders.

The Park has also put in place a set of business ethics and standards
of behaviour which are outlined in its Code on Corporate Governance
Practices and Staff Code of Conduct. There were no confirmed cases
of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations or confirmed
corruption incidents during the reporting period.

Ocean Park’s sound corporate governance structure, along with its key
performance indicators based on international best practices, ensure that
the Park’s sustainable development strategy can maintain its focus to
uphold the Park’s vision, mission and values.
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In 2019/20, the Park recycled
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Environmental stewardship

Environmental stewardship is deeply rooted in the Park’s culture. All
policies and practices are developed to ensure minimal possible impact on
the environment, and to promote conservation and wise use of natural
resources.

In the fight against climate change, Ocean Park has adopted a wide
range of measures and initiatives aimed at reducing energy consumption
and carbon emissions across its facilities and operations.

Recycling

Recycling is one of the important ways Ocean Park works to reduce
its carbon footprint. We always try to find creative ways to reduce,
reuse, recycle and repurpose materials in the Park’s daily operations. For
example, elimination of plastic straws has been a critical part to reduce
reliance on single use plastics. Visitors who request for a straw will receive
one fabricated from potato starch that is fully degradable.
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Minimising carbon emissions
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Carbon emissions reduction

One of the key sustainability achievements at the Park has been its
ten-year carbon reduction plan, a goal adopted in 2012. We are proud
that our target goal was successfully achieved four years ahead of
schedule in 2018 when carbon emissions were reduced by 10%.

Also, in support of HK Electric's Feed-in Tariff Scheme, Ocean Park
installed its first solar power system on the roof of the Polar Adventure
attraction in March 2019. Its installed capacity is currently around a 200
kilowatt-peak and generates about 200,000 kilowatt hours of electric
power annually, equivalent to the electricity consumption of 50 four-
person households.

The second phase will see more solar power systems to be installed at the
Park, including The Grand Aquarium, The Waterfront Cable Car Building,
The Summit Cable Car Building, The Waterfront Funicular Terminal and
The Summit Funicular Building.

Conservation messages for in-park visitors

While striving to provide unforgettable experiences to visitors through
a unique mix of entertainment and education, Ocean Park promotes
conservation by organising or participating in activities and programmes
designed to inspire conservation awareness and small changes in
everyday habits to create a sustainable future together.

A highly successful example is the No Straw Campaign initiated by
Ocean Park Conservation Foundation, Hong Kong (OPCFHK), which
invites the public to say no to plastic straws as the first step in eliminating
the use of single-use plastics. Research commissioned by the Foundation
shows encouraging progress with Hong Kong’s overall plastic straw
consumption dropping from 1.7 billion in 2017 to 1 billion in 2020.

i D R BE
REEAFBEER LN -AKRARR=-F
—ZFHE T FRIRE R RERTFERRD
BOZ THEAHIERE - AEER TN\
F o RFPOFERZAT BRI RS - 3,
EIPN=ER

N BFAEEBXHABEILHEER
T8 RZT—NF=AE KRR | RE
RERKBENEBABRELRNRES  #E
REFE_BATRN SFALEL_T8
EE HEROATENARE-—F0A

e
B8 °

RERCDHETEF _EERAE EREZRE
REAGRIKES  BREISEFHTE]  5&
LEZILMEAR SELEZLHEE -
gt SEERe ISt S sl VN A

REABENREREML
BEREDYBEERERKAELE BAOAR
A EAmER IR T ERNFR - TNEBERK
SETRESHMNEBEHRE - BARBEAR
REBH  EMBBAREH —LEEEE L
RIS - HAIATSEERAAK -

Hb—l+2K0fFE2FEEFLE
REES (REED) TRRN [ BREED]
EHYBEARIERE] ERER—KRNK
PRAGNE—F HREESZRFETH
FERAEEREBR  [EREED | RRER
B XERFLEBREEREN _—F—LF
MTEtBIXARE_ZS_TENTES - K&

TATEE

NO

STRAW,

THANKS!

moE W W OW oM

‘ﬁ{l ROW LAY RO TD ETRAWTT

Sustainability Report I #F & B &HE 35



In view of COVID-19 and the rise in food delivery numbers, the call-
for-action this year has been expanded to say no to plastic cutlery and
containers. Schools were also invited to sign up for the Plastic-Free Living
Week designed to raise students’ awareness of marine pollution through
free-to-access educational kits and school talks.

Along with the opening of the Hong Kong Marine Life Stranding and
Education Centre (HKMLSEC), the HKMLSEC Open Day Guided Tour
is organised on a regular basis, and offers Park visitors a close look
at OPCFHK’s stranding response efforts and equipment involved.
Coupled with in-park narration and edutainment offerings, this
behind-the-scene tour is one of the Park’s latest in-park education
offerings for visitors to better understand human impact on marine
life and biodiversity.

Donations to OPCFHK

Each year, OPCFHK runs various programmes to both raise public
awareness of environmental protection and financial support for
conservation projects. Co-organised by Ocean Park and OPCFHK on
11 to 12 January 2020, the 25th annual Conservation Day resulted in a
donation of HK$1.4 million from admission fees on 11 January 2020 to
support the Foundation’s conservation work and research.

Furthermore, the Park donated HK$1 of every paid admission ticket to
OPCFHK, which during the 2019/20 fiscal year amounted to HK$1.8
million. At the same time, contributions from sales of panda merchandise
and animal interactive programmes raised HK$0.5 million, while HK$0.8
million was donated from the revenue of Tuxedos Restaurant.

The above donations from the Park totalled HK$4.5 million while another

HK$0.3 million was raised through donation boxes and the Octopus
donation mechanism at Ocean Park over the 2019/20 fiscal year.
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Championing health and safety

Drills, inspections and audits to maintain safety standards

Health and safety is always key to the Park’s management philosophy and
maintained to the highest industry standards. Ocean Park’s Corporate
Safety Committee is committed to ensuring the Park offers a hazard-
free environment for its visitors, staff and animals, with facilities well
protected from potential risks.

The Park’s health and safety procedures and practices are reviewed,
evaluated and updated on a regular basis. More than 600 drills took
place during the year to prepare for emergencies such as fire, ride
rescues, power and systems failures, diving accidents and visitor incidents
during education tours or animal encounter activities. The Park’s drills are
designed as an opportunity to continually refresh staff training and test
frontline employees’ readiness for any eventuality.

Every aspect of the Park’s work is guided by clear coordination and
communication protocols for emergencies. For over 25 years, the Park
has also engaged external safety consultants from overseas to conduct
an annual safety audit, and provide an independent assessment on rides,
attractions and other features of the Park.

In the 2019/20 fiscal year, annual safety audits continued to cover food
and retail outlets, kitchens, warehouses, and were extended to select
animal facilities.
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Knowledge sharing and industry exchanges

Over its 43 years of operations, Ocean Park has built a well-earned
reputation as an advocate of safety assurance and thoughtful risk
management.

The Park is dedicated to knowledge creation, organisational learning and
industry exchanges, while Park executives and technical experts actively
participate in industry organisations where best practices and innovative
ideas are shared, and issues are discussed.

Heightened safety in preparation for the Park’s reopening

Ahead of the Park’s reopening when COVID-19 stabilised locally, and
to prepare staff members for the “new normal” operation practices
throughout the Park, an orientation session involving all staff was held
on 28 May 2020 to introduce the operational adjustments and anti-
pandemic measures. Further, six simulation sessions were held in May
and June 2020 with 758 participating employees for them to rehearse
and refine the new practices.
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Supply chain management

Supplier assessment

To protect the environment through the line, the Park’s full supply chain
and vendors are vigilantly vetted. The Park reviews its entire supply chain
on an ongoing basis to ensure all suppliers and vendors are in compliance
with the Park’s policies and requirements on environmental impact as
well as occupational health and safety.

A total of 840 supplier appraisal reports were compiled during 2019/20
on major contracts. Of those reviews, 99.4% was in full compliance.

Continuous efforts to mitigate environmental impact

In working with the Park’s supply chain, efforts were made to mitigate
environmental impact and address a wide range of supplier activities.
These include the use of recycled materials to reduce waste, the
purchase of sustainable materials and systems such as the solar panel
installations to provide a renewable energy source, as well as the
provision of water refill stations and the addition of two pay-per-
fill Bonaqua water machines in November 2019 to help reduce the
consumption of single-use plastic water bottles.

The Park also manages a broad range of other waste and pollution
mitigation efforts such as reliance on degradable materials for garbage
and shopping bags, as well as disposable raincoats and use of FSC paper
among other environmentally-friendly materials. At the same time, for its
catering service, Ocean Park proudly serves 100% sustainable seafood.
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Engaging Ocean Parkners

Ocean Park’s success depends on a world-class team of well-trained
employees dedicated to providing visitors with the best experiences.
During the difficult times of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Park exerted
extra efforts to engage the staff and maintain their well-being.

Staff engagement initiatives

Ocean Park’s Management values communication with employees and
ensure that staff can express their views and concerns. Focus groups
were conducted on staff well-being during the Park’s closure in March
2020 to understand their needs and expectations.

The Park’s Chief Executive also hosted a communication session on 11
May 2020 to provide updates on the Park’s closure and thank the entire
Ocean Park team for their commitment and support.

Other communication channels include the Gimme Cheers programme
which provides a platform for Ocean Parkners to show appreciation
towards each other, and the Park’s Yammer corporate page that enables
Ocean Parkners to connect and share news in the workplace. Further, the
internal Sea Sea TV channel was launched in October 2019 to provide
in-house produced programmes on insider news, recent updates and
anecdotes of the Park.
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Maintaining staff professional development and well-being
Ocean Parkners were also celebrated during Staff Appreciation Night
2019 on 18 September 2019, where they enjoyed an exclusive
Halloween Fest preview and a buffet feast.

To help boost staff morale amidst the pandemic, the Park showed its
appreciation for their perseverance with two heart-warming videos titled
“Ocean Park Add Oil” and “Ocean Park How Are You?". Staff members
also enjoyed complimentary soup distributed by Management in staff
canteens, and received pandemic-prevention kits to help safeguard their
health.

To refresh and sharpen employees’ professional skills, Ocean Park
arranges a wide range of training sessions on an ongoing basis, with
topics including service excellence, language, environmental, health and
safety, and more.

Promoting work-life balance, healthy lifestyle and personal well-being,
the Park also offered a great variety of related seminars and workshops
for staff to choose from.

. @

EBRIERRERS VEE
RER-—FE-NAFAATNBEIT-_Z-A
FEIBETITHMH®RE | B#HE T —FRNEL
FE - HWFEBEIEAREATBEFAE
(MERE2ER] YERLEaH0RE -

RIEHE 2ERRAEILRMELME
DRlER DEFRE IR & [+ EIREE 2]
B LRER - RREST R AL B THT R A
RLBH  PEERENEETERRER
BTXERG WRENRBEHARRE

BFERBERTEHRMMEE THHEEKEE
REZFERBIRE - ABRRERITIRE
Bx FEN B’E RERLZE2ES -

NERKEEE TRAFTIFREEFE

WIEBMASLEE HEERBEERZN
RN T RETERE2HE -

Sustainability Report AT #F B B H &



Contributing to the local community

For 43 years, Ocean Park has worked to engage and serve the Hong
Kong community, providing edutainment experiences alongside
opportunities to get close to nature. Enjoying festival days at Ocean Park
has become a tradition for many, and free admission on birthdays has
long been a note of appreciation offered to our local visitors.

The Park’s complimentary and discounted offers have provided recreation
and edutainment opportunities for many Hongkongers who are less
privileged and for senior citizens.

Community ticket statistics
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Ocean Park x Sino Group Golden Age Volunteer Programme

The Ocean Park x Sino Group Golden Age Volunteer programme has
been one of the most successful campaigns for Hong Kong seniors
seeking a way to stay engaged and give back to the community while
having fun at the same time. Golden Age docents have opportunities to
engage with the community and Park visitors of all ages while sharing
fun facts on animals and conservation knowledge.

Sponsored by the Ng Teng Fong Charitable Foundation, Ocean Park x Sino
Group Golden Age Volunteer Programme in 2019 recruited 72 retirees
aged between 48 and 74 as narrators at Ocean Park with assistance from
the Golden Age Foundation. These Golden Age Volunteers contributed
6,007 hours of their time to promote animal and conservation messages,
reaching over 52,914 visitors.

International Day of Persons with Disabilities

For the International Day of Persons with Disabilities 2019 (IDPD), Ocean
Park hosted 8,000 visitors and their family members or carers during
the period of 3 to 30 November 2019 in its annual recognition of Hong
Kong’s need to promote social integration of disabled persons into the
community’s mainstream life.

The IDPD promotes participation and leadership of disabled persons
in their communities as part of the United Nations’ 2030
Development Goals Agenda. Highlights of the day
were filmed by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Services and shared with the public via YouTube /
and Facebook as well as aired in the MTR and on
community television.
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Educational programmes at a glance
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Diversified programmes for different target groups
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Elevating experiential learning

Ocean Park is continually looking to elevate experiential learning in
both the physical and digital worlds with interactive activities to further
empower students to discover, explore, and be inspired through their
observations and hands-on experiences.

Curating new learning experiences with Redd’s Nature Play Party

With schools closed due to COVID-19, Ocean Park introduced a new
online educational channel on YouTube — Redd’s Nature Play Party in
February 2020 to engage children in experiential learning. The channel
helped young children learn about animals and nature through a variety
of fun and engaging content and approaches, and also created an
additional self-learning platform for kindergarten and lower primary
school students to learn at home together with their parents.

The channel featured new videos every week under three content
themes: Play With Nature which aims to stimulate curiosity and guide
children to explore and discover the mysteries of nature leveraging their
five senses; Move & Dance where Ocean Park mascots Whiskers &
Friends encourage children to exercise at home while having fun through
gymnastics and dance movement demonstrations; and Art and Craft
Workshops to stimulate children’s creativity and enable them to learn
about animals while creating their own animal-themed arts and crafts.

Featuring a collection of some 60 videos since its debut, the channel
received overwhelming feedback with close to seven million views, and
was widely adopted by school teachers to complement school topics and
support students’ e-learning experience.
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Young Explorers Club elevated with creative learning

Injecting creativity into experiential learning, Ocean Park’s Young Explorers
Club (YEC) collaborated with the renowned Helen O'Grady Drama
Academy from Australia to bring a brand new Creative Communication
and Drama Play experience in the 2019/20 school year.

Specially curated for children aged between three and six, the programme
aims to sharpen their communication skills and expressiveness through
drama and teamwork guided by professional instructors, as they learn
about various animals and their characteristics through the Park’s unique
natural environment and entertainment resources at the same time.

The programme, a first-of-its-kind at the Park, empowers children to
discover the thrill of learning outside traditional classroom settings. It
fires their imagination and creativity through drama play, communication
and coordination with fellow participants. Through a creative take on
experiential learning, children can boost their self-confidence, enhance
their communication skills and improve their teamwork skills.
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Immersive learning experiences

Whether through the use of technology or by the use of human senses,
Ocean Park incorporates immersive educational experiences into its
attractions and programmes to offer visitors a more hands-on and fun
approach to learning.

Discover nature through the five senses

Coinciding with Ocean Park’s reopening in June 2020, the Park launched
Redd’s 5 Senses Discovery, a free edutainment programme curated to
stimulate curiosity and encourage children to discover the wonders of
nature through nature play and experiential learning under their parents’
guidance as they explore the Park together.

Under this programme, visitors will receive a discovery pack to explore the
different Discovery Zones located throughout the Park's Waterfront, with
a wide array of recommended activities to help children learn through
the five senses of sight, hearing, smell, taste and touch as they interact
with objects, animals and plants while immersing themselves in the Park’s
environment.

Get to know African animals

Curious visitors can now better understand new members of the Animal
Ambassador team as they meet them at the Park’s African-themed animal
habitat, Little Meerkat and Giant Tortoise Adventure. A series of
interactive and experiential games with technology weaved in
await visitors. They can read through interactive e-books,
race against different African animals, and see the world _
from the perspective of the Aldabra giant tortoise. <

Through the interactive learning experiences, children
will learn about how meerkats and Aldabra giant tortoises
adapt to their environment, as well as how to live

in harmony with nature by loving and respecting

all living creatures on Earth.
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Igniting the thrill of discovery

The Park always looks to provide extraordinary educational experiences
to ignite the thrill of discovery in guests while connecting them with
nature. Even during a year of unprecedented challenges, we were
able to immerse children in animal-themed learning programmes, and
inspire older students through intellectual competition and internship
opportunities.

Encouraging creative learning

To further encourage creative learning, the Park’s Adventure Camp
Series 2019/20 invited four to 11-year-olds to immerse themselves in
amazing animal discoveries over the holidays — from enjoying memorable
encounters with seals and sea lions, to feeding and observing sharks
and rays. Children also had a chance to become chefs and toy crafters
for some of the Park’s animal ambassadors, handcrafting food and
enrichment items for rainforest animals to bring their creativity to life.

As the latest edition of Ocean Park’s Adventure Camp Series, the
2019/20 programme was designed to connect young explorers with
nature and quest for exploration, and groom their awareness of
environmental protection and nature conservation.

Whiskers & Friends animation

Ocean Park’s mascots Whiskers & Friends have been at the forefront
of the Park’s education outreach efforts. Other than being the feature
characters of the Whiskers Express & the Miraculous Journey live
performance and the early childhood Whiskers & Friends Kindergarten
Education Kit, the seven adorable mascots have also been the face of the
Whiskers & Friends animation series to promote conservation messages
and inspire environmentally-friendly habits from a young age.

Since its launch in 2018, the Park has continued to use the dedicated
Whiskers & Friends YouTube channel to engage children with an array of
creative content. This year, a series of Questions and Answers with Redd
videos were published to satisfy children’s craving for knowledge.
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Student internships

There is no better way for potential young employees to experience
working at the Park than by immersing themselves in one of our many
internship opportunities. Ocean Park offers diversified internships as part
of its commitment to provide valuable learning and work experience to
students or fresh graduates, and to develop future talent for the Park
from business, tourism and hospitality programmes in universities and
other educational institutions.

In 2019/20, these included offering 14 internship opportunities for
undergraduates and Postgraduate Diploma in Education Programme
(PGDE) students from The University of Hong Kong. From October 2019
to March 2020, participating students designed narration packages for
the Rainforest, Giant Panda Adventure and The Grand Aquarium, and
then conducted those narrations around the Park.

Meanwhile, from 30 September to 5 November 2019, PGDE students
also shadowed the Park’s educators, conducted educational programmes
independently and revamped content for them.

Ocean Park also worked with the Home Affairs Bureau for the third
consecutive year to organise a six-week Youth Internship Programme
at Wolong National Nature Reserve in Sichuan, together with two new
programmes, namely the three-week Youth Internship Programme
at Wuyishan on Biodiversity Conservation and the three-week Youth
Internship Programme at Shandong on Marine Sciences, providing a total
of 50 internship vacancies for Hong Kong college students to Mainland
China in summer 2019. These internships included opportunities to be
ecological researchers, interpreters and content creators.
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Second International STEAM Competition

Following the success of the inaugural event last year, the Park held The
Ocean Park STEAM Student Competition 2020, inviting students from
across the world to propose creative solutions to animal conservation
issues by applying the knowledge and skills they have acquired from
STEAM (Science, Technology, Engineering, Arts and Mathematics) related
disciplines.

For this year's competition, student participants were tasked to design
and construct environmental enrichments for green sea turtles and
meerkats. Students created innovative solutions including a sea current
device which emulates the flow of seawater and makes green sea turtles
feel closer to nature; a seabed simulator which emulates the ecological
environment of green sea turtles; and an integrated feeding and climbing
device for meerkats that encourages exercise.

Looking ahead, despite the difficult circumstances, Ocean Park will learn
much from the past year as it delivered its commitment to education
through an increased use of interactive and creative teaching channels.
As we move forward, the Park will continue to press ahead with its
renewed focus on education in the coming years and adapt to meet the
ever-evolving educational needs of Hong Kong.
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Unwavering Commitment to
Wildlife Conservation

BRTEERBEE®D

With an ever present and strong commitment to conservationand BFAEHEGFRDMERE —RFE
animal care, Ocean Park was able to continue its important work £87) - Bl{E2019 B RFE S KR EIBHE -
in the 2019/20 fiscal year to protect threatened and endangered 2 BEEZZ—AE_THBEEFERMElD
species, and provide the Park’s animals with meticulous care ETEEEEIf ' UEAFTZRER
despite the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. HEDE LREEABSDERERBLCH
¥ -
Furthermore, among several developments, the Park accomplished
some important milestones including the unveiling of the Hong HitFER  EREBRZHPAEFRESE
Kong Marine Life Stranding and Education Centre, the arrival 2 SEFESFEMRERVTHRL
of several adorable new animal ambassadors and the first BI% ESUEMH2HKBHMRE: DR
attempted panda mating at the Park. NEXEREETRETERARE -

Park conservation fun facts

BELCERTIGEREER
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World-class expertise in animal care

Providing leading husbandry care in trying circumstances

Ocean Park’s dedicated animal care professionals continued to ensure that
the highest standards were met to safeguard the health and well-being
of animal ambassadors at the Park during the pandemic. These include
the use of positive reinforcement as part of a holistic preventive welfare
programme that is accredited and certified by third party organisations.

To keep them in tip top shape and as part of our holistic preventive
medical planning, other than regular animal health checks, behavioural
observations and health index measurements, additional physical
examinations were conducted for all animals. For example, the animal care
team performed a list of husbandry checks with birds on a daily basis. Since
birds are prone to respiratory infections, based on recommendations from
veterinarians, the Park’s penguin keepers provided additional vitamins or
nutritional supplements to the penguins during their daily feeding sessions.
The team also observed their breath. Similarly, the pinniped caretaking
team measured each seal’s body temperature, brushed their teeth and
regularly checked their mouths every day to maintain good oral health.

During the pandemic, several special precautionary arrangements were put
in place to ensure the health of animals, visitors and the animal care teams.
These included additional disinfection of facilities, the installation of hand
sanitiser dispensers at entrances to all animal habitats and the temporary
suspension of all Get Closer to the Animals programmes. As an extra
precaution, all visitors were required to wear masks at all animal habitats.
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A respected entity in animal care and veterinary science
The Park has long been recognised on both regional and international
levels for providing exceptional animal care.

In fact, aside from being the first accredited member of the Association
of Zoos and Aquariums (AZA) outside of North America, Ocean Park is
proud to have been named as a Nature Conservation Base by the Forestry
and Grassland Administration of Sichuan Province.

The Park also has a growing reputation for promoting and advancing
veterinary science through the Ocean Park Veterinary Centre. As a
designated training clinic for veterinary practice in Hong Kong, the
Centre facilitates best-in-class professional training and education.
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Professional memberships and certifications

BELAESKERABTHRRRE

ACCREDITED BY THE ¢ Accredited Member of Association of Zoos and Aquariums (AZA)
ASSOCIATION BWERKKERFBTER
OF Z005
AQUARIUMS ¢ Accredited Member of Alliance of Marine Mammal Parks and Aquariums
(AMMPA)

RENEREEMIENRE

World Association of Zoos
and Aquariums | WAZA
United for Conservation®

Museums

KEWALBMOERKEENRAZTER

American Humane’s Humane Conservation™ Certification

¢ Member of Aquaria Committee of China Association of Nature Science

FEARHNSEVERTKEESRZIRITR

¢ Member of National Aquatic Wildlife Conservation Association, China

HUMANE REKEFEHMRESEER
C ERTJHEP ¢ Member of World Association of Zoos and Aquariums (WAZA)
- HRBMEEKEEGEER
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Contributing to local wildlife conservation

For 25 years, Ocean Park and Ocean Park Conservation Foundation,
Hong Kong (OPCFHK) have regularly joined forces to protect Chinese
white dolphins and other cetaceans in the Pearl River Estuary. In addition,
in 2006, the two entities further stepped up their efforts through the
creation of the Marine Life Stranding Response Team.

Over the years, the Park and OPCFHK have worked in tandem with
the Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation Department (AFCD). In
2019/20, the team handled 51 stranding cases, including 33 finless
porpoises, 12 Chinese white dolphins and six other cetaceans.

The Park has also been voluntarily working with AFCD in other areas to
help animals in the wild, including caring for stranded or confiscated
endangered animals. Over the 2019/20 fiscal year, the team assisted
AFCD in releasing a total of eight rehabilitated green sea turtles into
the wild. These turtles were put in medical care and husbandry at the
Park after being rescued in joint operations or after they were seized in
enforcement operations.
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With its expertise in animal care and veterinary science, Ocean Park is also
able to assist AFCD by offering husbandry recommendations. In 2019/20,
these included expert advice on the care of two Arctic foxes confiscated
by the Department in December 2019 and February 2020 respectively to
ensure their health and well-being.

In fact, Ocean Park regularly funds important conservation and research
work through OPCFHK to help save many regional species from
extinction. Key initiatives include the Saving Animals from Extinction
(SAFE) programme launched by AZA.
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Exciting Park firsts

Grand opening of HKMLSEC

After many months of anticipation, Ocean Park and OPCFHK launched
the Hong Kong Marine Life Stranding and Education Centre (HKMLSEC)
in September 2019. Funded by the HSBC 150th Anniversary Charity
Programme, the Centre is the first full-scale necropsy, virtopsy, research
and education facility in Asia that offers all-round analysis of potential
causes of injury and death of marine life, and data-driven insights to
shape future monitoring and conservation efforts. Its arrival perfectly
complements the Park’s long-standing response work to cetacean
stranding cases.

HKMLSEC is equipped with comprehensive, advanced facilities including
a computerised tomography (CT) scanner, histopathology examination
laboratory and necropsy area for cutting-edge research. It has greatly
enhanced both the quantity and quality of data processing and analysis.

The Centre also offers a virtual data library of marine stranding cases,
through which specimens and samples can be shared with external and
overseas experts for knowledge sharing and consultation, filling the gaps
of current stranding programmes, while strengthening the necropsy,
training and research capabilities of the Ocean Park Veterinary Centre at

the same time.
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Aside from scientific research, HKMLSEC additionally plays host to
professional workshops, as well as education tours and programmes for
the public and students.

The monthly HKMLSEC Open Day Guided Tours provide intrigued visitors
with an inside look into OPCFHK'’s stranding response efforts and the
equipment involved. The Centre also houses programmes specifically
tailored for secondary school students, including the Mystery of Marine
Life Stranding programme that offers junior secondary students an
exclusive look at different examination techniques used in stranding
investigations through interactive activities and case studies. Meanwhile,
the Workplace Visits to Ocean Park — Animal Rescue programme
introduces senior secondary students to advanced equipment and
necropsy methods, and deep dives into the unique role of Ocean Park’s
veterinary team in animal rescue.

First natural mating attempt of the Park’s pandas

Giant pandas Ying Ying and Le Le achieved a major milestone in April
2020 when they tried to mate naturally for the first time, which was an
uplifting news for all at the Park and beyond. However, despite having
displayed typical pregnancy symptoms including reduced appetite,
prolonged rest time and changes in hormonal

levels, Ying Ying's symptoms gradually subsided,
and she was confirmed not pregnant.

In spite of this, all at the Park hope Ying Ying
and Le Le will take in the experience and
make another attempt in the next breeding
season. At the same time, we will continue our
commitment to provide the highest standards
of animal care and maintain the giant pandas’
well-being while working closely with experts
from the China Conservation and Research
Centre for the Giant Panda to help protect the
species.
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Welcoming new animal ambassadors

Onboarding new meerkats and giant tortoises

In the summer of 2020, visitors were finally able to meet all 20 meerkats
and two Aldabra giant tortoises at the new animal habitat, Little Meerkat
and Giant Tortoise Adventure.

Following strict animal acquisition guidelines of the highest industry
standards, the meerkat pack initially moved to Ocean Park from Zoos
South Australia counting just five members in 2019. Upon swift
adaptation to their new living environment, the meerkats quickly grew
to two families, or “mobs”, with a total of 15 meerkat pups. The two
families have since settled and have been meeting plenty of smiling faces
at their new home.

In celebration of three Hong Kong-born meerkat pups, Ocean Park held a
fun naming poll on Facebook. With more than 4,000 votes, the pups are
now officially named as Charles (milk tea with condensed milk), Jeff (black
coffee) and Yan (coffee with tea). These names are the transliteration
of popular local beverages, which are all local cultural icons and share a
similar colour with the meerkats’ fur.

The 15-year-old Aldabra giant tortoise brothers, meanwhile, were given
to Ocean Park as a private donation, and as the second largest tortoise
species in the world with an average life span of a whopping 100 years,
visitors can expect to see the pair at the Park for many years to come.

Ringing in the new year with five gentoo penguin babies

At the turn of 2020, excitement and joy were felt at the Park’s South Pole
Spectacular as the animal team welcomed five gentoo penguin babies
in January and February — with one of them even hatching on 1 January.
The five baby gentoo penguins have been growing healthily under their
parents’ attentive care.
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Pandas celebrate birthdays

Showing an impressive longevity, An An,
already the world’s oldest male giant panda
under human care, became a centenarian in
panda years (99 in human years) in August
2019 when he celebrated his 33th birthday.
The younger panda duo, Le Le and Ying
Ying, also marked their 14th birthdays at the
same time. Commemorating the momentous
occasion, the Park offered a variety of panda-
themed merchandise and desserts for visitors to
join in the celebrations.

As giant pandas can live up to 20 years on
average in the wild and lifespans of those under human care can reach
30 years, at 33 years old, An An is a rare “centenarian panda” indeed.

Connecting visitors with animal ambassadors
Despite its temporary closure, the care of the animals didn't stop. The
Park's animal care professionals continued to provide world-class care.
Even though there is no substitute for viewing live animals in person,
the Park went out of its way to connect visitors with both nature and its
lovable animal ambassadors during the pandemic.

To do this, the Park created and shared a wide variety of social media
content to engage fans online. This ranged from fun educational posts
with little-known facts about the animal ambassadors such as spotted
seals and walruses, to behind-the-scene snippets from the daily lives of
penguins and capybaras, as well as highlighting the animal care team’s
husbandry efforts.

The entertaining and informative content helped connect visitors with
the Park’s animal ambassadors even though they could not physically see
them, and were well loved by many in the social media space.

In fact, to nurture the next generation of conservation experts, the
continued use of social media to expose fans to the animal ambassadors
has been vital in keeping youngsters engaged during the pandemic. As
Ocean Park looks to further build on this important work in the years
ahead, inspiring the next generation will help the Park further its dual
aims of promoting an appreciation of the natural environment in visitors
and protecting endangered animals in Asia.
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Animal Vital Statistics
Gt B F

Ocean Park’s Animal Collection ;BF 2\ E &t
1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020 —B—hELtA—AE_E_BEXA=+H

2019/20 2018/19
Nl\llz!:?'r:meal T;gf:g:' Bird Rep_tile Amphibian Fish All Animal Groups All Animal Groups
EERIE B LT RE 1738 Gl 3] RE FEBNER FEBYER
As at 1 July 2019 As at 1 July 2018
BE-T-NLEFEEA—H #E-T-)\FtA—H
No. of Animals
Births'
iy 3 27 14 3 0 118 165 326
Other Acquisitions?
b3 A 0 0 0 0 0 306 306 723
Mortalities®
Fr- 1 15 26 3 6 474 525 641
Other Dispositions*
2 0 1 21 1 6 39 68 47
As at 30 June 2020 As at 30 June 2019
BE_S-BEAAZS1A BE—E-AFAA=HA
No. of Animals
e 65 70 421 75 76 6,771 7,478 7,600
Mortality Period
RTRRDE
Within Quarantine
BE N 0 0 0 0 0 33 33 129
Within 30 Days of Birth
A £305 1 11 4 0 0 0 16 8
In Collection
R 0 4 22 3 6 441 476 504
Notes: et
1. In-park births included 3 spotted seals, 27 meerkats, 6 gentoo penguins, 3 king penguins, 1. RERLENSYEE=EEH  —++EIE  NEEMHE
2 blue-crowned laughingthrushes, 2 yellow-bibbed lories, 1 pied imperial pigeon, - ZEHICE MERTES MEFEKE . —£
3 red-foot tortoises, 65 flag cichlids, 26 goldfish, 15 sebae clownfish, 5 yellow seahorses, LM —EAMER N TRKEREE  —t A Ke/
3 brownbanded bamboo sharks, 2 epaulette sharks, 1 cownose ray and 1 gold tetra. THEES )R REFEET  ZHEUETR  MEeER

—IRERE— RS -
2. The Park’s other acquisitions included 113 fish donated to the Park, and another 192 acquired

through purchases and collection, while 1 fish was added as part of stock adjustment. 2. AESIAMEYEE-B—TZRBRTEFLENM - WEA
FRET H—FN 168 o B - REITERBATA RN
3. There was 1 marine mammal mortality, which was a spotted seal pup that died immediately T &R

after birth. The 15 terrestrial mammal mortalities included 11 less than 1-day old and 1 less
than 2-month old meerkat pups, 1 geriatric Asian small-clawed otter euthanised due to renal 3. BEF A-EEFWMILASYEAY - HARHAENIER -

failure, and 1 red-necked wallaby and 1 pygmy marmoset which died of disease. A total of AT REEARBIES YRS - 2+ —SR4ETE—RN—&
26 bird mortalities were recorded, including 18 birds comprising aged ones that had reached or TRMEARNIIE « — &2 F 8/ NTUKREE B =18 ik & 5
exceeded the longevity for their species, or of undetermined age that were accessioned during BRI AR — Eilﬁméﬂfﬂ—iﬁkﬁlfiﬁfﬂi Bt
the closure of the former Tai Shue Wan aviary or arrived at the Park with an unknown age. The HEBA -+ E HEhE+/\EEEEFHEBHAREN
rest of the bird mortalities comprised of 1 blue-crowned laughingthrush, 1 gentoo penguin, 1 FH9E - SO HOER B R R XA AT B SR A A AR 8
king penguin and 1 pied imperial pigeon, which failed to live beyond 1-month of age due to REABEANEE L AEREMFRTFNER - HMREE—E&RT
disease or undetermined cause of death, 1 white-fronted amazon and 2 Guianan toucanets that RES . —EEMmERE - *%IEE&%% —EREN - A
died of disease, and 1 lilacine amazon that died of trauma. There were 3 reptile mortalities, which FERBRAEEEIAMAELTEBB @A —EAMK
included 1 rescued green iguana that died of disease, 1 rescued carpet python euthanised due WHF WMEETHLNEE % RmEH M—S4a4R
to disease, and 1 common slider with undetermined cause of death. The 6 amphibian mortalities BARAGEY  BEZERTEDY BF— %%&ﬁ P
included 3 frogs that lived beyond their life expectancies, 2 red-eyed tree frogs that were autolysed E‘U AR O R BE 0 — IR Ti B SRR R R
and died of disease respectively, and 1 poison dart frog that was autolysed. The 474 marine and R M—EEAEREBRTEXR SEMEEHY
freshwater fish mortalities included the loss of 33 fish during quarantine and 441 fish that died i t AE-EEBEESEFSRaNEE W %
in the collection. The majority of mortalities in the collection were from species with lifespans of AT AR50 8 4> B B R A8 B 17 93 iR 1T oK A% B S 5T I8 0 8 5 o el
5 years or less, including goldfish, tetra, cardinalfish, butterflyfish and razorfish which died due to AR —EEBEAE B 1T AR M A BT SEE BB ST © m§t+mm
multiple factors including age, disease, euthanasia and undetermined causes of death. SRR AR ZH A=+ =ZFRMEMN+—ED 5 J{JE
BEREREET - MANE RS T A EER - KI5

4. Other dispositions included the donation of 1 southern two-toed sloth to a zoo in Portugal, B THBBAFNRE  BESRA - BEHKE - ik - lﬁ%ﬁﬂ&

the donation of 20 gentoo penguins to an aquarium in Mainland China and the donation of TR& - MNEERSAFE &% - RERMNTHERR -

1 green-winged macaw. In addition, 1 green tree python and 6 poison dart frogs were sent to B ‘
Singapore under an animal exchange agreement. Another 39 schooling fish were deleted as part 4. EZBEZHNIVEE -SRETFUANEETNESHWEN i

of stock adjustment. T8 :TLETﬁEmﬁ‘WiWMFﬁEE’JE’FﬁEEmﬁ% M—EEB 2R
8815 o B4 - IRIBEYIIAIRE - —IRERIES A S E S aT 2 HE
The Animal Collection data for the period from 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020 (the “Data”) that is AR - peoh - H= +7‘LME¥)§?I&,’§?\¥EEA§E#§%}LHB¥&E‘JW

included in the Animal Vital Statistics information above was compiled based on the Reporting

Principles. The Data has been verified by an independent third party, Ernst & Young, in accordance with UERZT-NF+tA-BET_TEXA=TAFEZ(BWRT

Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised), Assurance Engagements Other Than ) B EME YAt B (BUR) RIE (RS RA) & - Z8i5E

Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information (“HKSAE 3000") issued by the Hong Kong Institute BB R =T REZOKE I EE  RIZET B ST AGMRM

of Certified Public Accountants. B & B %8 2 B YE RIS 3000 5% (MRS ET)[ $HBE M S G R 1T ik
FEBILAINEYAZEZHE | (THKSAE 3000) + FUAZE -

Please refer to https:/Amww.oceanpark.com.hk/en/corporate-information/assurance-report-vital-statistics

for Ernst & Young's assurance conclusion under HKSAE 3000, and the Reporting Principles. BT KAEHNEREEARZFBARIRERA] - F2H
https://www.oceanpark.com.hk/tc/corporate-information/assurance-
report-vital-statistics
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Redefining the Ocean Park Experience
EE E E ;Fﬁ IE IETE @ EE AR

As a unique asset of the Hong Kong
community, Ocean Park never ceases
to refine the visitor experience with
new approaches to entertainment
and hospitality, as well as Hong Kong'’s
tourism experience.

From extending entertainment through
multi-dimensional nighttime experiences,
bringing edutainment to the fore in
enthralling new rides and exhibits,
and adapting to a pandemic through
enhanced hygiene measures and social
media during a period of temporary
closure, the Park continued to engage
Hongkongers in new, different ways

in 2019/20.
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Colouring the Night
ZEHNR

Gala of Lights
b3 3.7

Taking entertainment to a whole new level, Ocean Park officially
launched Gala of Lights, an extraordinary integrated nighttime
entertainment experience featuring 360-degree water-based
multimedia shows at The Grand Aquarium and Aqua City Lagoon,
offering exciting interactive installations never before seen in Hong
Kong, along with themed dining and an array of unique souvenirs in
January 2020.

The evening extravaganza kicked off with Soul of the Ocean, a
one-of-a-kind spectacle celebrating nature in all its wonders. Wowing
visitors, the show incorporates state-of-the-art projection mapping,
original music, and surprising special effects like flaming jets, mist and
dancing water fountains, as well as an action-packed performance by
21 artistes that brings together athletic parkour, synchronised dancing
and thrilling acrobatics.

EEAER BT AR [ HPRR) - ERAIRAERIEA N ERYNER -
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For the nightly grand finale, the Park presented Visions of Hong
Kong, a multimedia fountain show that dazzles the audience with an
inspirational journey through the city and beyond. With Hong Kong as
its muse, the show cruises through dreamy and impressionist landscapes
that feature the iconic Victoria Harbour skyline and its skyscrapers,
the neon lights that illuminate through the streets of Hong Kong from
day to night, and the natural lush green nature of the surrounding
mountains.

Extending the indulgence, from the visionary to the culinary, the Park
also introduced a series of gourmet food and delicate set menus to
enrich the nighttime experience. Highlights included the Heritage
and Precious Tasting Menu at Neptune’s Restaurant created by
internationally acclaimed chef Qu Hao with the 200-year-old Japanese
soy sauce brand, Hamadaya, as its key condiments together with fresh
ingredients from Kumamoto.

A range of scrumptious snacks was also made available at Lakeside Chill, including
Ciao Chow, the first and only pizzeria in Hong Kong to secure the prestigious
Verace Pizza Napoletana certification.

EBEER B AR —ELETENSERERRXE  TRERBE—HFH
BERBERONATZIK - SIEUNBRRRER  FREEWBERE - RBbERKEAK
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To conclude the evening festivities, visitors could take home
customised merchandise at the all-new experiential store OPX,
where they can mix and match their favourite graphics for
personalised, unigue souvenirs.

The Park also partnered with ADAM, a social enterprise set
up by Arts with the Disabled Association Hong Kong, to invite
three local artists with disabilities — Alvin Li Tse-shun, Apple
Tong Wing-yin and So Tat-shing — to design a series of artworks
inspired by Ocean Park, Hong Kong or animals, which are available
for purchase at OPX.

Ri% - SERAAIEEHE OPX 8855 - EREXH
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Halloween Fest
BELERMHERZER

Ocean Park Halloween Fest was back with a new Park-wide approach
in 2019, where spooky elements went beyond haunted houses and
shrouded six zones around the Park in mystery and brought scary
stories to life.

As the night progressed, ghosts took over the entire Park, with visitors
braving the ever-escalating scares as they navigated the horrors
around them.

One of the scary highlights was Hong Kong Hauntgrounds, a
phantom housing estate and playground featuring the haunted
attraction Phantom Estate 2.0 presented by WeChat Pay. Visitors
could relive the grisly tales and urban legends of abandoned
public housing estates of the 70s and 80s. To create an appealing
experience, the attraction incorporated design concepts by a
second-year architecture student from The University of Hong Kong,
the winner of the haunted house design competition hosted earlier
in the year.

For a fun experience that suits all ages, the Park invited BROWN
and CONY, together with other beloved LINE FRIENDS characters to
dress up in festive costumes for a Halloween Candy Adventure at the
LINE FRIENDS Spooky Sweets Playland. Fun mini games were available
for visitors to win candy treats and enjoy photo opportunities with
the adorable LINE FRIENDS characters.
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Christmas Sensation
B 2iHHO HO HO

Ocean Park brought a sparkling winter with
trendy attractions during Christmas Sensation
2019, offering visitors with contemporary and
artistic photo opportunities. From the bright
Crystalline Christmas Tree presented by Sino
Group to the Shimmering Christmas Forest, visitors
were enchanted by the dazzling glitter of the
installations.
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Summer Water Battle

BEANEREKE

The Ocean Park Summer Water Battle 2019,
presented by SKECHERS, invited the popular
Japanese anime series One Piece to take it up a
notch and boost the splashing fun.

Fans could step into one of the anime’s classic
scenes to join the Straw Hat crew at Ultimate
One Piece Water War for an exciting water
battle against the Marines, getting them soaked
for a refreshing summer experience. A series of
interactive photo opportunities featuring icons
from the anime, such as Bounty Posters and
Luffy’s Straw Hat, allowed fans of all ages to
enjoy cooling fun.
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Bringing Edutainment to The Fore
EREHRNLRE

Wild Twister
IR

Arriving at Ocean Park just in time for Christmas 2019, the waterspout-
inspired Wild Twister ride challenges daredevils with an extreme
experience with its arms swinging and springing crazily on separate
axes, accelerating up to 4G. The ride also merges its intense
movements with magnificent sea views, giving adventurous souls the
experience of being in the middle of a waterspout.

Weaving education into the thrilling ride, the preshow prepares
visitors for the adventure by welcoming them with a simulated
tornado installation at the waiting zone, accompanied by a fun
and educational video featuring Leung Wing-mo, former Assistant
Director of the Hong Kong Observatory, who shares interesting facts
about waterspouts. Visitors can also download the Wild Twister AR
mobile app with mini games and selfie effects for photo opportunities
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Interactive animal installations

HEHEMBFTRE

Ocean Park always looks to make conservation learning both
educational and fun for young visitors. With Little Meerkat and Giant
Tortoise Adventure making its debut in the summer of 2020, the
habitat is equipped with edutaining interactive installations. Visitors
can play fun and informative games simply by using touchscreens
incorporated with motion sensors.

One of the games, the Africa’s Dash Invitational, invites visitors to race
against animals by “running” in front of motion sensors. Participants
can then compare their speed against the average speed of several
African animals.
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and an immersive ride experience.
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A1z 2L g - Ocean Park's New Normal
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- b !l ¥ A SRS Elevated hygiene measures
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The health and safety of Ocean Park’s visitors, staff and animals are
always of the utmost priority at the Park. With the impact brought by
COVID-19, a series of strict precautionary measures were put in place
to make sure everyone felt safe while still enjoying the Park.

As a crowd control measure, visitors were required to make online
reservations, while Park-wide capacity and that of individual rides and
facilities were reduced by more than half.
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Al visitors and staff were required to undergo body temperature checks
upon entry, and wear masks at the Park area. Additional hand sanitiser
dispensers were installed at the entrances and exits of most attractions
and facilities to ensure sufficient supply.

To further put visitors’ minds at ease, cleaning included the regular
spraying of a nano-photocatalytic coat, disinfection of main facilities
every one to two hours, and nightly deep cleaning across the Park
with high-pressure jets.

For all in-park restaurants, tables were kept at least 1.5m apart with
number of people not exceeding the Government’s anti-pandemic
regulations. All staff wore masks and gloves for food handling, and
dishes were covered when delivered from kitchen to table to minimise
air exposure.

Last but certainly not least, the Park’s adorable animal ambassadors
were not forgotten, receiving regular health checks and constantly
observed by the Park’s animal team.

Extending the Ocean Park experience through
social media

In spite of the temporary closures during most of the first half of
2020 to combat COVID-19, Ocean Park did a fantastic job of staying
connected with the community and keeping fans entertained with
creative, fun and engaging daily stories on social media.

Whether featuring updates on the Park’s lovable animal ambassadors
or sharing exhilarating thrill ride videos to challenge fans' sensation
limits, Hongkongers were able to keep in close touch with the Park
while staying safe at home.
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Getting Guests Involved
HEERERA

Celebrating Park reopening with Whiskers &
Friends

In June 2020, to welcome eager and excited visitors to the Park again,
Ocean Park’s mascots Whiskers & Friends, alongside performers,
frontline and supporting staff performed a countdown for the much-
anticipated reopening at the main entrance.

The Park also invited the first group of visitors through the turnstiles
to take a memorable photo with the mascots. A special gift pack
with hand sanitiser, masks and an adorable plush toy of mascot Redd
was also given to each of the first 100 visitors.

Guest survey to improve Park offerings

The Park has always been keen to listen to visitors and consumers’
opinion to better our experiences and offerings, and elevate the
Ocean Park experience.

Over the 2019/20 fiscal year, the Park interviewed a total of 8,200
local and overseas consumers through various surveys and focus
groups for a deep dive into consumer preferences and behaviours.

The feedback gathered was key in inspiring some of the Park’s new
experiences, including the renewed Park-wide and zoning concept for
Halloween Fest 2019, and partnerships with popular IPs for seasonal
events such as the Summer Water Battle featuring One Piece and
Halloween Fest 2019 with LINE FRIENDS.

As the Park brought consumers’ suggestions to life, the Ocean
Park team has also seen encouraging results. The diversified
event experiences brought double-digit growth in average event
attendance, coupled with increases in local visitor attendance and
expansions in visitor age groups. Grateful for visitors’ feedback and
suggestions, the Park will remain invested in seeking visitor insights as
it charts forward to a new future.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE BOARD OF OCEAN PARK CORPORATION

Disclaimer of Opinion

We were engaged to audit the financial statements of Ocean Park Corporation (the “Corporation”) set out on pages 84
to 161, which comprise the balance sheet as at 30th June 2020, and the income and expenditure account, statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the financial statements of the Corporation. Because of the significance of the
matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these financial statements. In all other respects,
in our opinion the financial statements have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Ocean Park
Corporation Ordinance (Cap. 388).

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

(i) As described in notes 2, 4 and 5 to the financial statements, the carrying amounts of the Corporation’s property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets were HK$7,727.8 million and HK$5.8 million respectively, which were
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses as at 30th June 2020. The Corporation
incurred net operating deficit of approximately HK$1,171.9 million (2019: HK$588.1 million) for the year ended
30th June 2020, which is an indication that the property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets maybe
impaired.

The Corporation was unable to determine the value-in-use of the cash-generating unit to which the relevant
assets belong as there was no readily available information for the Corporation to estimate future cash flows
which was subject to the uncertainty over the completion of the rethink exercise being carried out by the
Corporation, the Tourism Commission of the Commerce and Economic Development Bureau and other relevant
bodies. As a result, the Corporation was not able to determine the recoverable amounts of the relevant assets
and we were unable to satisfy ourselves that the carrying amounts of the property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets were free from material misstatement or any impairment losses should have been
recognised. Consequently, we were unable to determine whether any adjustments might have been found
necessary in respect of the property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and the elements making up the
income and expenditure account, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows.

(ii) As described in note 2.1 to the financial statements, the Corporation incurred net operating deficit of approximately
HK$1,171.9 million for the year ended 30th June 2020.

The Corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern is dependent on the ongoing availability of the
Government'’s support to the Corporation. Should the Government no longer provide financial support to the
Corporation beyond 30th June 2021, the Corporation might not be able to continue to operate as a going
concern and repay the Government subordinated loans for the Ocean Park Redevelopment Plans and the
Ocean Park’s Tai Shue Wan Development Project from September 2021, and adjustments would have to be
made to reclassify the Corporation’s non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities respectively, to write down the carrying values of the Corporation’s assets to their recoverable amounts
and to provide for any provision for any contractual commitments that have become onerous as at the end of the
reporting period. The effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in the financial statements.

In view of limitation of scope regarding the property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets as well as the

significance of the extent of uncertainty relating to the ongoing availability of the finance to the Corporation, we
disclaim our opinion in respect of the year ended 30th June 2020.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE BOARD OF OCEAN PARK CORPORATION

Responsibilities of Board Members and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Board of the Corporation is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and the Hong Kong Ocean Park Corporation Ordinance (Cap. 388), and for such internal
control as the board members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of the Corporation is responsible for assessing the Corporation’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the board members either intend to liquidate the Corporation or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternatives but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Corporation’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Corporation’s financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report in accordance with the
provisions of the Hong Kong Ocean Park Corporation Ordinance (Cap. 388), and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. However, because of
the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these financial statements.

We are independent of the Corporation in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
("the Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23rd September 2020
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OCEAN PARK CORPORATION

BALANCE SHEET

AT 30TH JUNE 2020

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Club debenture

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Current account with
Ocean Park Trust Fund

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities

Lease liabilities
Commercial loans

Net current assets

Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities

Government subordinated loans

and Commercial loans

Interest payable on Government

subordinated loans
Derivative financial instruments

Net assets

Financed by:
Capital fund
Accumulated surplus
Hedging reserve

Mr Lau Ming-wai, GBS, JP
Chairman

The notes on pages 90 to 161 are an integral part of these financial statements.
FI0EFE 161 BN BARTEHREH—FH -
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BELAELT
BEARE
R_E_EBFA=1TH
2020 2019
Notes HK$ million HK$ million
BiEE BETET BB EET
FREBEE
M - e R 4 7.727.8 6,946.8
EREEE 5 5.8 =
2HES 6 3.3 3.8
7.736.9 6,950.6
RENEE
=FE 7 115.4 104.7
2 5 RE M EBGK 8 186.6 114.2
BEEF ABEETEES
B SR AR IR 9 8.2 13.9
RITHER RIS 10 468.8 1,085.8
779.0 1,318.6
REIEE
B 5 REM K 1 418.2 664.4
BHEE 12 124.6 165.6
HEAE 13 4.5 =
BEEER 14 - 200.0
547.3 1,030.0
REBEEFE 231.7 288.6
EREBEE
HEBE 13 1.4 -
BT B E R &
FEER 14 3,677.5 5,097.5
BB E R
FERTFILE 14 1,488.1 1,279.8
SRPTETH 15 17.9 28.7
5,184.9 6,406.0
BEERE 2,783.7 833.2
EERR :
BEARES 16 475.0 475.0
RIEAR 2,308.7 386.9
Eapiaal=i 17 - (28.7)
2,783.7 833.2

NS 42 4, GBS, JP
*E

OCEAN PARK CORPORATION
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2020

Revenue

Operating costs

(Deficit) surplus from operations

Finance costs

Other expenses

Net operating deficit

Fair value (loss) gain on
club debenture

Investment income

Government grants

Surplus (deficit) for the year

YA

e (BR) B
s ER
Hib &

REBERFH
EHESAHE
(E18) ek

REWA
BB &

REER (BR)

BELELT
e

BE_S_EFA=THILESFE

2020 2019

Notes HK$ million HK$ million
B 5 B¥EETT BEEHET
18 717 .1 1,734.9
19 (1,279.4) (1,543.9)
(562.3) 191.0

21 (189.3) (182.2)
22 (420.3) (596.9)
(1,171.9) (588.1)

(0.5) 0.9

23 10.5 299
24 3,083.7 -
1,921.8 (557.3)

The notes on pages 90 to 161 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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OCEAN PARK CORPORATION BEAELF
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FSlaR%F

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2020 BE_S"TFAZTHLEE

2020 2019
Note HK$ million HK$ million
k3 BYEER BERET
Surplus (deficit) for the year REEEER (BE) 1,921.8 (557.3)
Other comprehensive income HeibirE W
ltems that may be subsequently reclassified BERAIREEF DR
to profit or loss: B2 HE -
Cash flow hedges W ImE 17 10.8 3.7
Transfer to profit or loss upon discontinuation ~ #LE ¥ BRI E =
of hedging relationship 1B 17 17.9 -
Total comprehensive income (expense) REEFEHREZESWE
for the year (%) 1,950.5 (553.6)

The notes on pages 90 to 161 are an integral part of these financial statements.
FI0EF 161 B TB ARG Bz —7H o
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OCEAN PARK CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2020

Balance at 1st July 2018
RZZE-N\F+A—B#&E&HR

Deficit for the year
FEER

Other comprehensive income

HittgR & W as

Cash flow hedges
BamEn

Total comprehensive (expense)
income for the year

FEEFARS () K

Balance at 30th June 2019
RZE—NFNA=+HER

Surplus for the year

FEAR

Other comprehensive income

HittgR & Wi

Cash flow hedges

BamEhn

Transfer to profit or loss upon
discontinuation of hedging relationship

RSB RRE 18

Total comprehensive income
for the year

REFRRE W

Balance at 30th June 2020
R-EBE-EF A=+ HEH

L EIN

i f=3 4 JES

8E"_T"EFA=1THLEFEE
Capital  Accumulated Hedging

fund surplus reserve Total
HKS$ million HK$ million  HK$ million HK$ million
BEXES REER e Ast
BYEEET BYEET ABYEER BYEEET
475.0 944.2 (32.4) 1,386.8
= (557.3) = (557.3)
— — 3.7 3.7
= (557.3) 3.7 (553.6)
475.0 386.9 (28.7) 833.2
- 1,921.8 - 1,921.8
— — 10.8 10.8
- - 17.9 17.9
- 1,921.8 28.7 1,950.5
475.0 2,308.7 - 2,783.7

The notes on pages 90 to 161 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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OCEAN PARK CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2020

L EIN
ReREE

BE_S_EFA=+HILEEFEE

2020 2019 2020 2019
Notes HK$ million HK$ million BifaE BEEERT BERET
Cash flows from operating activities EETHNRERE
Net cash (outflow) inflow from operating activities 25 (735.7) 253.6 BIEEE R EERERS 25 (735.7) 2536
Cash flows from investing activities REZBNRESRE
Interest received 15.7 36.3 A S 15.7 36.3
Net withdrawal of fixed deposits held at banks WeEREIFHABBE=EA8
with original maturity over three months 546.1 551.7 IRTTE BfF FOFHE 546.1 551.7
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - 0.1 LHEE AR |« MESE T Rt - 0.1
Purchase/construction of property, plant and equipment (1,341.4) (1,612.8) B/ R MR RE (1,341.4) (1,612.8)
Net cash used in investing activities (779.6) (1,024.7) BETHFFASES (779.6) (1,024.7)
Cash flows from financing activities RMETHNRESRE
Drawdown of Government subordinated loans 28 - 630.0 EEER T B E R 28 _ 630.0
Drawdown of Commercial loans 28 1,550.0 100.0 =N S 28 1,550.0 100.0
Repayment of Commercial loans 28 (3,170.0) (190.0) i E 28 (3,170.0) (190.0)
Settlement of interest rate swaps 17 (13.4) (19.1) | RIS 2 17 (13.4) (19.1)
Interest and other financing costs paid on Commercial loans (62.4) (42.2) BB (B R E A S B (62.4) (42.2)
(5 Hp MAPMTEXFAETER = o .
Repayment of lease liabilities 28 (5.3) - EERESE )8 5.3)
EREHSRE . -
Funding from Ocean Park Trust Fund - 100.0 Y AR RS A
Receipt of Government grants 24 3,145.5 26.3 //%E\L\\ RS RS YR - 100.0
WERB TN & 24 3,145.5 263
Net cash from financing activities 1,444.4 605.0 .
J MEEHELFRS 1,444.4 605.0
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (70.9) (166.1) HeRESZEYSHD (70.9) (166.1)
3] 3] IR = - .
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 539.7 705.8 EE S RIBLZEY 539.7 705.8
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 10 468.8 539.7 FRESRESZEY 10 468.8 539 7

The notes on pages 90 to 161 are an integral part of these financial statements.
FI0EFE 161 ERMTB AR BHRKE —F5 °

The notes on pages 90 to 161 are an integral part of these financial statements.

FEI0EFE 161 EMNMEBAMBEHRERH—ED
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OCEAN PARK CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1

General Information

Ocean Park Corporation (the “Corporation”) is an independent body incorporated in Hong Kong under the
Hong Kong Ocean Park Corporation Ordinance (Cap. 388). The Corporation’s principal activity is to manage
and control Ocean Park (the “Park”) as a public recreational and educational park. The address of its registered
office and principal place of operation is Ocean Park Corporation, Aberdeen, Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in millions of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ million), unless otherwise
stated. These financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of the Corporation (the “Board”) on
23rd September 2020.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The Corporation incurred net operating deficit of approximately HK$1,171.9 million (2019: HK$588.1
million) for the year ended 30th June 2020. The Board of the Corporation is of the opinion that, taken into
consideration the Government’s commitment of granting HK$5,425.6 million which will be used to support
the operation of the Corporation from 1st July 2020 to 30th June 2021, to repay the commercial loans and
related financing costs of the Corporation and to settle the costs for completing the Corporation’s Tai Shue
Wan Redevelopment Project, and the ongoing availability of the Government’s support to the Corporation,
the Corporation will have sufficient working capital to meet its financial obligations as they fall due within
twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements. Among the Government’s commitment
of HK$5,425.6 million, HK$3,079.0 million was granted during the year ended 30th June 2020. Accordingly,
the Board of the Corporation is satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going
concern basis.

As at 30th June 2020, the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets were
approximately HK$7,727.8 million (2019: HK$6,946.8 million) and HK$5.8 million (2019: nil) respectively.
When assessing whether any impairment charge is necessary, the board members of the Corporation
consider that these assets will be included in the rethink exercise of the Corporation being carried out by
the Corporation, the Tourism Commission of the Commerce and Economic Development Bureau and other
relevant bodies, and believe that the rethink exercise will chart the way forward for the Corporation’s future.
However, the Corporation was unable to determine the value-in-use of the cash-generating unit to which
the relevant assets belong as there was no readily available information before the outcome of the rethink
exercise for the Corporation to estimate future cash flows.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”, which term collectively includes Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the requirements of the
Hong Kong Ocean Park Corporation Ordinance (Cap. 388). The financial statements have been prepared
under historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial instruments, which are carried at
fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires Management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Corporation’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectation of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.
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OCEAN PARK CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued
Basis of preparation - continued

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current year

The Corporation has applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first
time in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(FRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Corporation’s result and financial positions for the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these financial statements.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

The Corporation has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17
“Leases” (“HKAS 17"), and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Corporation has elected the practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and HKFRIC — Int 4 “Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease” and not apply this standard to contracts that were not previously identified as containing a lease.
Therefore, the Corporation has not reassessed contracts which already existed prior to the date of initial
application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1st July 2019, the Corporation applies the definition of a
lease in accordance with the requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in assessing whether a contract contains a
lease.
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OCEAN PARK CORPORATION BELELT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS M5 RMcE
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued 2. EESHBRNE -
2.1 Basis of preparation — continued 2.1 RBREX-&
New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current year — continued RAFERBIMEMZIET REETEBMEHRELER - &
HKFRS 16 “Leases” — continued ERNBHEENE 16K [HE]-&
As a lessee 1ERAMEA
The Corporation has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with the cumulative effect recognised at the date of AATIEBYIE R BRI EHREERE 16 SRAERBE  I—E—hE+ A —ARRIHTE .

initial application, 1st July 2019.

R-ZT-NFLA—R  ARARBEBFERELERIZE 16 5% C8(b)i) B EHRIZBENEBEEERE
MEREEE S RERBINEERBNEREEE - NEXER R RNEAIZREA AP R B8R -
WEBF| LB ER o

As at 1st July 2019, the Corporation recognised additional lease liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts
equal to the related lease liabilities by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any difference at the date of
initial application is recognised in the opening accumulated surplus and comparative information has not been

restated.
RIBERRBLETTENEERERVBREERNFE165E - AARHEMNBBRESGHERE 175
When applying the modified retrospective approach under HKFRS 16 at transition, the Corporation applied SHERKEHENTHE  BE—REEE  CHAEHECRGEANERUTEBER -
the following practical expedients to leases previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-
by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to the respective lease contracts: i EEHBEOEVGERBHRT —_HAARNTE& 2 HETERRTAEEEREERE &
i. elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases with lease term ends within i NERERR  FRESEZHETRENLEEEM -

12 months of the date of initial application; and

\Q\EJ\\ /H g IN= fE = /H\ =+ %;—%/ﬁi‘ s n}bH:\t [ \éﬁﬁi

ii. excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use assets at the date of initial application. WRITHR - ALRERAERHBH 16 HRAELIA T8
RERERPERKEHENEERER  ARAFERATERERBPHEBRRERNIES AN X -

MBI TG EERNES3.70E -

On transition, the Corporation has made the following adjustments upon application of HKFRS 16:

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously classified as operating leases, the Corporation

has applied incremental borrowing rates of the Corporation at the date of initial application. The weighted R-ZB-I#%F
average incremental borrowing rate applied by the Corporation was 3.70%. +tA—H
BEEET
At 1st July 2019
HKS million RET—NFXA=+EHBOEERERE 8.8
Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 30th June 2019 8.8 B EBRER - BARERESUHRELER
F169z B2+ —EARNEHHEE (0.3)
Less: Practical expedient — leases with lease term ending within e
12 months from the date of initial application of HKFRS 16 (0.3) 85
8.5 R_ZE—NFtHA—H
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant incremental borrowing rates ISR e 2R 16 B R TR ) B
| . . S B ZERE R AR TR AEAE 8.2
relating to operating leases recognised upon application of
HKFRS 16 as at 1st July 2019 8.2 .

Analysed as inEd)] 4.3
Current 4.3 FETTED 3.9
Non-current 3.9 82

8.2

94  Annual Report 2019-2020 ¥ & R & Auditor’s Report & Financial Statements & B ik & R Bk K 95



96

OCEAN PARK CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Basis of preparation - continued

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current year — continued
HKFRS 16 “Leases” — continued

As a lessee — continued

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own use as at 1st July 2019 comprises the following:

Right-of-use assets

HK$ million
Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases
recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 8.2
By class:
Leased properties 8.2

The following adjustments were made to the amounts recognised in the balance sheet at 1st July 2019. Line
items that were not affected by the changes have not been included.

Carrying
Carrying amounts amounts under
previously reported HKFRS 16 at
at 30th June 2019 Adjustments 1st July 2019
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
Non-current asset
Right-of-use assets - 8.2 8.2
Current liability
Lease liabilities - (4.3) (4.3)
Non-current liability

Lease liabilities - (3.9) (3.9)

Note: For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating activities under indirect method for the year
ended 30th June 2020, movements in working capital have been computed based on opening balance
sheet as at 1st July 2019 as disclosed above.
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OCEAN PARK CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

2.1 Basis of preparation - continued

New or revised standards that have been

issued but not yet effective

The Corporation has not early adopted the following new and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective at 30th June 2020:

HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts'

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions®
Definition of a Business?

Reference to the Conceptual Framework®

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture?

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current’

Definition of Material*

Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before
Intended Use®

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract®

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform*

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020°

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2021

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on or after the

beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after 1st January 2020
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2020
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2022
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st June 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2023

N o u o~ W

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs, a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting was issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July

2020.
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OCEAN PARK CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1

2.2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Basis of preparation - continued

New or revised standards that have been issued but not yet effective — continued

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 “Definition of Material”

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of material by including additional guidance and
explanations in making materiality judgements. In particular, the amendments:

o include the concept of “obscuring” material information in which the effect is similar to omitting or
misstating the information;

o replace threshold for materiality influencing users from “could influence” to “could reasonably be
expected to influence”; and

o include the use of the phrase “primary users” rather than simply referring to “users” which was

considered too broad when deciding what information to disclose in the financial statements.

The amendments also align the definition across all HKFRSs and will be mandatorily effective for the
Corporation’s annual period beginning on 1st July 2020. The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position and performance of the Corporation but may affect the
presentation and disclosures in the financial statements.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned above, the Management of the Corporation
anticipates that the application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Foreign currency translation
(@)  Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the Corporation’s financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Corporation operates (“the functional currency”). The financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Corporation’s functional and presentation
currency.

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at balance sheet exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income and expenditure
account. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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OCEAN PARK CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (other than projects in progress) are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Corporation and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in the income and expenditure account during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of fixed assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Depreciation period

Buildings 10 — 40 years
Plant and equipment 2 — 30 years
Exhibition animals 2 — 15 years

Projects in progress are carried at cost. For qualifying assets, cost includes any costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by Management and borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Corporation’s accounting
policy. Projects in progress are not subject to depreciation. Such properties are classified to appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. The assets’ residual
values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identified cash flows (cash-generating units).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds received, if any, with the carrying
amount. These are included in the income and expenditure account.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average cost basis with the exception of catering stock which are calculated using first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.
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OCEAN PARK CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising
from contracts with customers which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in income and expenditure account.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for financial assets and is presented as investment
income.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and
o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal

and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"”):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL").
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OCEAN PARK CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

2.5 Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets — continued

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables subsequently measured at FVTOCI.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below).
For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit impaired.

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Club debenture is measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in income and expenditure account. The net gain or loss recognised in income and
expenditure account is included in the “fair value change on club debenture” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Corporation recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL") on financial assets which are
subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade and other receivables, current account with Ocean Park
Trust Fund and bank balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
is done based on the Corporation’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting date
as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Corporation always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The ECL on these assets is assessed
individually. For all other instruments, the Corporation measures the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Corporation recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in
the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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OCEAN PARK CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Corporation
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Corporation considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in
the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Corporation presumes that the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Corporation has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Corporation regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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OCEAN PARK CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Corporation considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Corporation, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Corporation considers that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Corporation has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of default that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(@ the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
Write-off policy

The Corporation writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the counterparty
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Corporation’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in income and expenditure account.
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OCEAN PARK CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

2.5 Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude
of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default
and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information. Estimation
of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined with the respective
risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Corporation
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Corporation expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated based on amortised cost
of the financial asset.

The Corporation recognises an impairment gain or loss in income and expenditure account for all
financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Corporation derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Corporation neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Corporation recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Corporation retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Corporation continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in income and expenditure
account.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, Commercial loans and Government subordinated loans

and interest payable on Government subordinated loans are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.
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OCEAN PARK CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued
Financial instruments - continued

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in income and expenditure account unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in income and expenditure account depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.

Hedge accounting
The Corporation designates derivatives as hedging instruments for cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedging relationship the Corporation documents the relationship between the
hedging instrument and the hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for
undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis,
the Corporation documents whether the hedging instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair
values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk.

Assessment of hedging relationship and effectiveness
For hedge effectiveness assessment, the Corporation considers whether the hedging instrument is effective

in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk, which is
when the hedging relationships meet all of the following hedge effectiveness requirements:

o there is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument;
o the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from that economic relationship;
and

o the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the
hedged item that the Corporation actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the
entity actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item.

If a hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge effectiveness requirement relating to the hedge ratio but
the risk management objective for that designated hedging relationship remains the same, the Corporation
adjusts the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship (i.e. rebalances the hedge) so that it meets the qualifying
criteria again.
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OCEAN PARK CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Financial instruments — continued

Hedge accounting — continued

Discontinuation of hedge accounting

The Corporation discontinues hedge accounting prospectively only when the hedging relationship (or a part
thereof) ceases to meet the qualifying criteria (after rebalancing, if applicable). This includes instances when
the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised. Discontinuing hedge accounting can either
affect a hedging relationship in its entirety or only a part of it (in which case hedge accounting continues for
the remainder of the hedging relationship).

For cash flow hedge, any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity at
that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transactions are ultimately recognised in profit
or loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is
recognised immediately in income and expenditure account.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Employee costs

(a) Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost to the Corporation of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Corporation.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated
at their present values.

(b)  The Corporation operates two defined contribution schemes, both of which satisfy the provisions of
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. Contributions to the schemes are
recognised in the income and expenditure account as incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Corporation has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event. It is probable that the Corporation will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is
material).
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2.9

2.10

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, the Corporation recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Corporation’s
performance as the Corporation performs;

o the Corporation’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
Corporation performs; or

o the Corporation’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Corporation and
the Corporation has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

A contract liability represents the Corporation’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the Corporation has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured based on output method,
which is to recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the value of the goods or services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the remaining goods or services promised under the contract,
that best depicts the Corporation’s performance in transferring control of goods or services.

Notwithstanding the above criteria, the Corporation shall recognise revenue for a sales-based or usage-based
royalty promised in exchange for a licence of intellectual property only when (or as) the later of the following
events occurs:

o the subsequent sale or usage occurs; and

o the performance obligation to which some or all of the sales-based or usage-based royalty has been
allocated has been satisfied (or partially satisfied).

Taxation

The Corporation is exempt from Hong Kong taxes under Section 88 of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Ordinance.
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2.11

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Leases
Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in note 2.1)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for
a period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Corporation assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the definition under
HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Corporation as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in note 2.1)
Short-term leases

The Corporation applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. Lease payments on
short-term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the lease
term.

Right-of-use assets

Except for short-term leases and lease of low value assets, the Corporation recognises right-of-use assets at
the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any

remeasurement of lease liabilities.

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Corporation; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Corporation in dismantling and removing the underlying

asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

The Corporation presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on the balance sheet.

120 Annual Report 2019-2020 ¥ #& 3 &

N N
2T ETE

2.1

EEeRREE - &

e

HEREZ (BRI 2.1PHIERIFA R E BB EERFE 16 .2 &)

INRE FREE —E R AEGREANEEERNENARREE - AERAHEARRKEEHE -
HRNERERABMS 2RI HETXEACEAHELENER - ARRREBEFEVHREERE 16584
EERTGBHET ASWBERFEERARERABSHEE - RIFS REKMIGMBERKENR - SRITEY
B A RIEITERRE ©

AR AERFEA (BB 2.1 FRIE R IRA IR T BRI FE 2R 16552 1%)

EHEE

ARREEHENRGAEHERTES T —_EANEEERENHERRH R AR BEREE
R - EHERARREREZIEMREG T AERSER -

EREEE

BRERHEMEEEELEIN  ARARAEHEEMKE AMEBEEERER 2 B) BREAEEE - A%
BEEKARZITE SRERKRII  YHHERENERENEETHR -

EREEENRANBIE

. HERBENIHTESR

. GG BRI N EENTRER - HRE YRR EE R
. RABERENEERER - &

. ARRISFHMBREEEE - BREEEEMES SR EEEREZME KA EMERT
A LR

EREEERRABRITE BERARHNSGEE - U HERENEAENEFELAE -
ERREEAHEREMGTHEASHMENENHRBARERETHRITE -

ARBHEBEERBERTHERAEEEFES—EEBNEBIIR -

Auditor’s Report & Financial Statements 4 8 il $f 4 & 8 1§ 38 &

121



OCEAN PARK CORPORATION BELELT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B IR FRMIRE
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued 2. EESHBRNE - &
2.11  Leases - continued 211 HE-#&
The Corporation as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in note KA EJEBEAFAN (RG22 1 FRIE BRI IR B B B IREERF 1652 #) -

2.1) — continued

HEAasd
Lease liabilities

, , o ARREHEEHRG BIRRZ B RAX NNEENFENREHEE B EETVGRE - st EHENKE
At the commencement date of a lease, the Corporation recognises and measures the lease liability at the HIEE - BRSNS REEREE - ANA TSN E S SR R AR E R -
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease payments, SRR o

the Corporation uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate

implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. HENFRRE :

The lease payments include: . EEMR (BREEE LEERFR) bk B U SR8

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable; . BUARIES sk L R Al S SR - SRAHE SR B A R T UAYISET =
U variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as . RIS (B (AR ETa A E S RS ;

at the commencement date;

IMRARRAEEER T —ABEERFENTRER &

o amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees;
o o o : : - . RIFTHENSIR (WREERARRARRGITRZILHERRERE)
o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Corporation is reasonably certain to exercise the option;
and o
ERERMIRANE  HERERNBEERHEETIRETHE
o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Corporation exercising an . \ » .
option to terminate the lease. AAREEERERTPHHEREEA—EEFNIER IR -
After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments. HEBK
The Corporation presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the balance sheet. AATRAARNFETHAEESERENIEHERR - EREBHNEREE —EAREAKII D AR —E)
- ZEREIIHESRIEEEAME D - RRAEREEEKB O NEAEBEREIFEEEAKIB YN ETE
Lease modifications BiRA - iR EHA RN ES BES—HEARHIT -
The Corporation accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by making corresponding adjustments KRFEBARIN (= F—F 4+ H— B LET)

to the relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease component and one or

more additional lease or non-lease components, the Corporation allocates the consideration in the modified _ s SRR E . -
contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative standalone price of the lease component and ARRIFEERENRBMNESRHEARS - SRREERE < RREEMEE N ROFARAERA

the aggregate standalone price of the non-lease components. EAREBRRH ©
The Corporation as a lessee (prior to 1st July 2019)
The Corporation leases facilities where the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor and as

such classifies them as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the income
and expenditure accounts on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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2.12

2.13

2.14

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Government grants, donations and funding

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Corporation will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in income and expenditure account on a systematic basis over the
periods in which the Corporation recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, Government grants whose primary condition is that the Corporation should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as a deduction from the carrying
amount of the relevant asset in the balance sheet and transferred to income and expenditure account on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Corporation with no future related costs are recognised
in income and expenditure in the period in which they become receivable.

Amounts received or receivable from Ocean Park Trust Fund and The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust
("HKJC") relating to property, plant and equipment are deducted from the cost of acquisition in arriving at
the carrying amount of the assets. Amounts relating to other expenditure of the Corporation are credited to
the income and expenditure account when the related expenditure is incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. These costs
are expensed in the income and expenditure account in the period in which they are incurred, except to the
extent that they are capitalised as being directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to prepare for its intended use or sale.

Effective 1st July 2019, any specific borrowing that remains outstanding after the related asset is ready for its
intended use or sale is included in the general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on general
borrowings. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceased when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or completed.

Impairment on tangible assets and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Corporation reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets and
right-of-use assets with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible assets and right-of-use assets are estimated individually, when it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the Corporation estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating
unit when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
established. The recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units to which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units.
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2.14

2.15

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued
Impairment on tangible assets and right-of-use assets — continued

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Corporation compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating
units, including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that
group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating units.

In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated to the assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The
amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to
the other assets of the unit.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Corporation takes into account the characteristics of the asset and liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1st April 2019) or HKAS 17
(before application of HKFRS 16), and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance

of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

Estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Corporation estimates the useful lives of property, plant and equipment in
order to determine the amount of depreciation expenses to be recorded. The useful lives are estimated at the
time an asset is acquired based on historical experiences, the expected usage, wear and tear of the assets, as
well as technical obsolescence arising from changes in the market demands or service output of the assets.
The Corporation also performs reviews on whether the assumptions made on useful lives continue to be valid.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

In considering the impairment loss of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets, the recoverable
amount of the property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets needs to be determined. The recoverable
amount is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. It is difficult to precisely estimate
fair value because quoted market prices for these assets may not be readily available. In determining the value-
in-use, the Corporation uses all readily available information in determining expected cash flows generated
by the cash-generating unit and then discounted to the present value, of which the key assumptions to be
applied in preparing cash flow forecast including whether these cash flow forecast is discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected by Management in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates, the gross profit margin or the revenue growth rate assumptions in the cash flow forecast,
could affect the net present value used in the impairment test and as a result affect the Corporation’s financial
position and results of operations.

As at 30th June 2020, the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets were
approximately HK$7,727.8 million (2019: HK$6,946.8 million) and HK$5.8 million (2019: nil) respectively
(net of accumulated depreciation of approximately HK$4,144.8 million (2019: HK$3,804.5 million) and
HK$5.1 million (2019: nil) respectively). When assessing whether any impairment charge is necessary, the
board members of the Corporation consider that these assets will be included in the rethink exercise of the
Corporation being carried out by the Corporation, the Tourism Commission of the Commerce and Economic
Development Bureau and other relevant bodies, and believe that the rethink exercise will chart the way
forward for the Corporation’s future. However, the Corporation was unable to determine the value-in-use
of the cash-generating unit to which the relevant assets belong as there was no readily available information
before the outcome of the rethink exercise for the Corporation to estimate future cash flows.
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4. Property, Plant and Equipment 4., MK BIRE
Plantand  Exhibition Projects HEE
Buildings equipment animals  in progress Total B2EY HRRRE B EEIRE i
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HKS$ million HK$ million BEHET BEHErT RBY¥EER BY¥BEER BY¥EER
cosT R
At 1st July 2018 3,385.6 4,441.8 239 1,456.3 9,307.6 R-_E—N\E+A—H 3,385.6 4,441.8 23.9 1,456.3 9,307.6
Additions 8.3 50.5 0.2 1,545.6 1,604.6 138 = 8.3 50.5 0.2 1,545.6 1,604.6
Transfer 21.6 76.3 - (97.9) - e 21.6 76.3 = (97.9) =
Disposals and write-off (36.7) (124.1) (0.1) - (160.9) e T e (36.7) (124.1) (0.1) - (160.9)
At 30th June 2019 3,378.8 4,444 5 24.0 2,904.0 10,751.3 R-ZE—hEXA=+H 3,378.8 4,444.5 24.0 2.904.0 10,751.3
Additions 34 96.7 = 1,083.5 1,183.6 iﬁ 3.4 96.7 _ 1,083.5 1,183.6
Disposals and write-off (9.4) (51.5) (1.4) - (62.3) e T (9.4) (51.5) (1.4) _ (62.3)
At 30th June 2020 3,409.8 4,566.4 22.6 3,873.8 11,872.6 R-B—sE~A=+H 3,409.8 4,566.4 22.6 3,873.8 11,872.6
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Bt
At 1st July 2018 1,183.3 2,335.2 14.8 - 3,533.3 W—T - NE+A—H 11833 23352 148 5 35333
Provided for the year 125.7 288.0 1.8 - 415.5 i '125'7 '288'0 1'8 '41 5'5
< . . . - .
Eliminated on disposals and write-off (28.3) (115.9) (0.1) - (144.3) L T SR S (28.3) (115.9) 0.1) (144.3)
= = is R ki . . : - .
At 30th June 2019 1,280.7 2,507.3 16.5 - 3,804.5
' ' ' RZT—NFRA=+AH 1,280.7 2,507.3 16.5 - 3,804.5
Provided for the year 122.5 27122 1.7 - 395.4 b a 1y s o . o5 4
Eliminated on disposals and write-off 9.1) (45.0) (1.0) - (55.1) ﬁ%;}rﬁﬁﬁﬁi“ . (9-1) (45.0) . .O> - (55.1)
=5 FH IS AL & . . . — .
At 30th June 2020 1,394.1 2,733.5 17.2 - 4,144.8 - EXA=+H e . ) AR
R=—F _FF A= . 5 , . . - . .
CARRYING VALUES
At 30th June 2020 2,015.7 1,832.9 5.4 3,873.8 7,727.8 SREE
R-E-ZEFXB=1H 2,015.7 1,832.9 5.4 3,873.8 7.727.8
At 30th June 2019 2,098.1 1,937.2 7.5 2,904.0 6,946.8 .
RZZE—NFRA=TH 2,098.1 1,937.2 7.5 2,904.0 6,946.8

RER > ARAETYE S MREZBEDFTBRNTRRBGRE [HEKER R MMEFIECHIE RS
LEFAEEREEXINORNREE 1361 BET(ZE—NF  BEB39B8&ET) RE(ZT—NF: BK100
BETT) - UF - BELRRENERRES RS -

During the year, certain additions to property, plant and equipment of the Corporation were funded by the HKSAR
Government pursuant to the “Education Tourism Initiatives and Signature Lagoon Show Agreement” and Ocean Park
Trust Fund amounting to HK$136.1 million (2019: HK$53.9 million) and nil (2019: HK$100 million) respectively. The
entire amounts were deducted in arriving at the carrying amounts of the property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ri¥#EERMHE

Right-of-use Assets

N N

ERERE

Leased properties

HK$ million
HEWE
BEEEBT
As at 1st July 2019 R=FB-hEtA—H
Carrying amount REESXE 8.2
As at 30th June 2020 R-B-ZFXA=1+H
Carrying amount FRE® R 5.8
For the year ended 30th June 2020 BE-Z-ZFXA=1H
Depreciation for the year heES 5.1
Expense relating to short-term leases and G HATE B R H M B BRI
other leases with lease terms ending BB EHREERFE165%
12 months from the date of initial HHRESESHAT —EAR
application of HKFRs 16 NHEFHENER 1.9
Total cash outflow for leases HMERSRHRTE 7.2
Additions to right-of-use assets EREEERIEINE 2.9

The Corporation leases various leased properties for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed
term of 1 year to 5 years. In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable
period, the Corporation applies the definition of a contract and determines the period for which the contract
is enforceable.

The Corporation regularly entered into short-term leases for leased properties, machinery and equipment and
others. As at 30th June 2020, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases
to which the short-term lease expense was related as disclosed in this note above.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of HK$5.9 million are recognised with related right-of-use assets of HK$5.8 million
as at 30th June 2020. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests
in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

ARRHEREYVEANRBERLSE - EFUNEEARYRA—FERAFNEEHR - ARFIEBERDN
FEEARIEE S R AT HEREEE R EHRIA N E T REEARNRE

ARRERAREEYE B MRBIILEPREE -R-_T-_TFA=1TH  BHHEEAES BAXKZH
BENEHEEEMERNEREEHEAEMU

HERHIHEERZY

o RZZ-TFEXRA=1H BRAHERBERBKSIABE T EBEAREERBESSHET
BHEBRARSANHEEEENERERI - HEBZTHINEAOE - HEEETSERIERNER -

132 Annual Report 2019-2020 ¥ & 3 &

OCEAN PARK CORPORATION

N N

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ri¥#ERM:E

6. Club Debenture

BFER%

During the year, a fair value loss of HK$0.5 million (2019: fair value gain of HK$0.9 million) was recognised in

the income and expenditure account.

RER  BWREBGERNAFEBBRER0SBET(ZT—NEF:

NFEEWRZEBE0IBRETT) ©

7. Inventories &&

2020 2019
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEET BEEHET
Spare parts and other inventories THREMEFE 74.1 72.6
Merchandise 72 35.5 27.1
Catering B8 5.8 5.0
115.4 104.7

8. Trade and Other Receivables B HEKRR
2020 2019
HK$ million HKS$ million
BEEET BEEHET
Trade receivables B 5 e UGR 6.2 449
Prepayment TERTERRK 6.3 12.3
Interest receivables JEUFI B 0.3 4.4
Other receivables (Note) E b i R (BI5E) 173.8 52.6
186.6 114.2

All trade receivables were less than 90 days past due and details of impairment assessment of trade receivables
are set out in note 31.2.

All the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The carrying values of trade and other receivables approximate their fair values.

Note: As at 30th June 2020, included in other receivables was HK$151.3 million (2019: HK$50.2 million)
expenditure for the project funded by the HKSAR Government pursuant to the “Education Tourism
Initiatives and Signature Lagoon Show Agreement” incurred by the Corporation.

FIEBSRKEEBLRNTE  BREFEHOFEEHNHE31.2

RRT 2B 5 REAM YR BRE BB S RER B

B 5 REAMEYRE A FERREERS °

izt RZT_FEFRA=TH EEMRUERTEEAEERRBARE [(BHEKREERE R
R | BB IE R FREAMBE 1513A8 T (ZT—1F - B¥50288T) X -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ri¥#EERMHE

10.

Current Account with HEE EETESD
Ocean Park Trust Fund EFRIER

Current account with Ocean Park Trust Fund is unsecured, interest-free, and repayable on demand.

HEFNEERESNERREAERR N RS - BAHZEREER -

BITREBEREAS

Bank Balances and Cash

2020 2019
HK$ million HKS$ million
BEHET BERETT

Fixed deposits held at banks with original REBER=E A

maturity of three months or less AR EYERTT7E 2B
2N 260.7 199.4
Cash at bank and in hand RITHESB LIRS 208.1 3403
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEED 468.8 539.7
Fixed deposits held at banks with original FREHEA BB =18 A
maturity over three months RYERTTE HifF 3K - 546.1
Bank balances and cash RITHEHBRIA S 468.8 1,085.8

At 30th June 2019, the weighted average effective interest rate on fixed deposits held at banks with original
maturity over three months was 1.66%; these deposits had a weighted average maturity of approximately
234 days. At 30th June 2020 and 2019, bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates.

The carrying amounts of bank balances and cash are denominated in the following currencies:

RZZ-NFRA=TH  REHBEBE=EANRTERFROMETFIEREMNER1.66E : LtFFK
T RBIBAA2348 - RET_FFER_T-AFANA=TH  RITHRBIRRITMHHREE -

ARBRITEGRIR S OREEIA TG, RER S

2020 2019
HK$ million HK$ million
B¥EAET BREST

Hong Kong dollar e 424.7 721.8
United States dollar e 36.4 340.3
Renminbi ARHEE 2.7 2.7
Euro R TT 3.8 19.8
Swiss AR 1.2 1.2

468.8 1,085.8

134 Annual Report 2019-2020 ¥ & 3} &

OCEAN PARK CORPORATION

N N

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ri¥#ERM:E

10.

11.

MITRHEBRES - &

Bank Balances and Cash
— Continued

At 30th June 2019, bank balances and cash of HK$211.4 million were pledged as security for the Commercial
loans (Note 14(a)).

MRZBE—HERNA=1TH ARBUBE2INIBETHRITER MRS EAREERNEM (K
14(a)) °

Trade and Other Payables BHRHEMBEMSR
2020 2019
HK$ million HK$ million
BYEET AKEERT
Trade payables B SN 205.9 3458
Accrued charges EiRER 161.2 292.7
Interest payable JERTFE 0.1 0.6
Advance deposits and others TR GRIE I B At 51.0 25.3

418.2 664.4

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
The carrying values of trade and other payables approximate their fair values.

Included in trade payables is an amount due to Ocean Park Conservation Foundation, Hong Kong of HK$0.1
million (2019: HK$0.8 million) which is unsecured, interest-free, and repayable on demand.

As at 30th June 2020, trade payables and accrued charges included nil (2019: HK$67.2 million) and HK$3.0
million (2019: HK$98.0 million) respectively which were related to additional project costs payable and accrual
for legal costs and other claims. For details, please refer to note 22.

During the year ended 30th June 2020, advance deposits and others included HK$12.4 million (2019: HK$1.5

million) of funding received but not yet untilised for the project funded by the HKSAR Government pursuant to
the “Education Tourism Initiatives and Signature Lagoon Show Agreement”.

RRBZE S MEMENROREES AT BEE S -
85 MEMENRO A HERKEERS °

ENERTDEREEEEEFAEREESHERKREABB LI BET(ZE—N%F  B¥08BET)
AR AR B MEER - ARIREBRER -

R-Z-_ZFXA=1TH BZRNFELREREASHNEEERZET(ZZ—NF  E¥672B8T)
KAB®30BET (ZT—NF %9808 &) - HERMNBEINARKAMERER MEMRENTER
BERBR - HI5HE2HME22

R-Z_FFERA=THLEFE  ARFREREMEBECKRIIERRSBHEE 12488T (ZT—NF:
BE1588T) BT - AREERMNTREBFRE B KERE MEFE T ER TR EBRER -
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OCEAN PARK CORPORATION BEALCELNT OCEAN PARK CORPORATION BEANCELTF
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MBEERE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS M ERME
12.  Contract Liabilities AR 13.  Lease Liabilities — Continued HESE-&
30th June 30th June No extension options are included in any of the lease agreements entered by the Corporation. The incremental
2020 2019 borrowing rates applied range from 3.70% to 4.19%.
HK$ million HK$ million
—E-E —T-NF RAREINEAEERZRES T EREEREERE - BRANSEETRAER/ITOEEL4I19E -
~A=+H ~NA=1+H8
BEEET BERET
14.  Government Subordinated BFMEERR
Advances from customers TEREFR 124.6 165.6 Loans and Commercial Loans BEER
L . . e ., 2020 2019
Contract liabilities of the Corporation, which are expected to be settled within the Corporation’s normal HKS million  HKS million
operating cycle, are classified as current. . . A
peraiing & AMEET BEEET
Revenue recognised during the year ended 30th June 2020 that was included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year was HK$124.2 million (2019: HK$94.9 million). Government subordinated loans iSTIEIEEN
. . . . . (Notes (a) and (b)) (FtzEa K b) 3,677.5 3,677.5
When the Corporation receives advance payment for tickets, merchandise and catering coupons sold for used . . ; - P g rm s
in a future date, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the tickets and coupons Commercial loans and revolving credit facility = fERE
are surrendered or have expired. (Note (a) and (b)) (MtsEa K& b)
— MRP Commercial loans - MRP B E K - 1,520.0
N == 35 H 2 R Ay 4, PAS =2 )
AARNEHBERREARREREBLERENGE - MOBRARBEE _ TSWR revolving loan _TSWR EIRE % _ 100.0
FHEFANEGHNEERBE T EF R AA=-THILFERRZWAREE 124288 T (ZT—NF - 3,677.5 5,280 5
BHIAIBETT) °
YA FMEIR L EEAR A BEANNE  BRNEREEEEENAMNRES  REAOMREES The amounts are repayable: BB
BHEE  BEZRPIENEEFHESCRIR R LR -
Within one year —FR - 200.0
13. Lease Liabilities HERARE More than one year but —FLAEE
not exceeding two years BB 431.9 1,420.0
2020 More than two years but MEFLA LB
HK$ million not exceeding five years TEBBEAF 977.3 1,508.1
BREET More than five years BiERF 2,268.3 2,169.4
3,677.5 5,297.5
Lease liabilities payable: BNHERAE: Less: Amount due within one year BE N BRBARE -
Within one year —FR 4.5 shown under current liabilities — REERZER
Within a period of more than one year but not —FEREF Commercial loans —FAEENA - (200.0)
more than two years BAZRME 1.4 Amounts due after one year shown under FIRIEREBE L E
59 non-current liabilities R—F&EEHE 3,677.5 5,097.5
Less: Amount due for settlement within B CRBEEET
12 months shown under current liabilities +=@ERAA
IHEE e 4.5
Amount due for settlement after 12 months JEREBAB/IET
shown under non-current liabilities +=@R%

R EEE S RE 1.4
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e ETE

14. Government Subordinated Loans And Commercial Loans — Continued

(a)

Under the Master Redevelopment Plan (“MRP"”), the Corporation was expanding the Park with an
estimated total cost of HK$5,550 million introduced by phases over 5 years. The Corporation is funding
these commitments through the followings:

HKSAR Government loan

With the approval of the Finance Committee of the Legislative Council on 16th December 2005, the
HKSAR Government is committed to providing to the Corporation a subordinated loan of HK$1,387.5
million for a period of 25 years (matures in 2031) at a fixed interest rate of 5% per annum on the
cumulative outstanding balance.

Interest is payable together with the principal amount by instalment from September 2021.
MRP Commercial loans

To refinance the repayment of the original Commercial loans, the Corporation obtained and fully drew
down a five-year term loan of HK$2,638 million in March 2016. The MRP Commercial loans bear
interest at prevailing market interest rate.

During the year, the Corporation made repayments of HK$1,520 million (2019: HK$190 million) on
the five-year term loan and the Commercial loans were fully settled as at 30th June 2020.

The Corporation entered into a number of interest rate swap contracts to pay interest at fixed rates
ranging from 3.494% to 4.093% per annum. Total notional principal amount of the outstanding
interest rate swap contracts as at 30th June 2020 was HK$682.2 million (2019: HK$948.1 million)
(subject to amortisation in accordance with interest rate swap contracts).

The Corporation is funding the Tai Shue Wan Redevelopment (“TSWR") project through the HKSAR
Government loan, Commercial loan, Ocean Park Trust Fund and internal fundings. With the
approval of the Finance Committee of the Legislative Council on 24th May 2014, the HKSAR
Government is committed to providing to the Corporation a subordinated loan of HK$2,290 million
for a period of 20 years (matures in 2033) at floating rate which is determined with reference to the
interest rate of the Government's fiscal reserves placed with the Exchange Fund on the cumulative
outstanding balance. Interest is payable together with the principal amount by instalment from
September 2021. The Corporation has drawn down HK$2,290 million (2019: HK$2,290 million) of
the loan as at 30th June 2020.

The Corporation had a HK$650 million revolving credit facility, for funding part of the approved
increase in TSWR Project costs. During the year, HK$550 million (2019: HK$100 million) drawdown
was made from this revolving credit facility and this facility was fully settled as at 30th June 2020.

The Corporation obtained and fully drew down a revolving loan facility of HK$ 1,000 million in October
2019. The revolving loan facility is repayable on or before the final maturity date. During the year, the
Corporation made full repayments of HK$1,000 million (2019: nil).
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N N
2 ETE

14. HFENEBERRERER - &

(a)

(b)

(0)

RIBBFLAEEHNERAE CMRP") - ARFEELFAN RREEFRE  Frt @R AR/
5550 BETT ° AARIEBIATEFSETRLE ¢

EBERITHERFER

VAEHKEEEER N _ETRET A+ NBitE  EEBRTBREBNA#ZIRE®H S -_+5
FH(ZZE=—F3H) r AEFFRSE - B 13875588 THKHIBER -

“EBE—FNAR ST AFEMAE o
MRP £ E

RBEERENEEEN  ARAR - E-—R"F-AEGI 2 HRER—ENFHEK2638HETT
EHER - MRPEEERIRER IS KRGS

RARFEERN AR R EBEZAFEEHERABE 1520088 T (22— N5 : BE1905ET)
REEFRCR-_ZE-_ZTEA=THE2HLEE -

ARRET T —FIIFRRERY - WIREF3404BF4003E 2 ARFE AL « R=F
—BERA=E - BARRONERAZON LR RSO BB 6822 BB (ZE—NF
B 948.1 BETT) (RIBFIER BRI IR) -

ARARIEBEAFRERTER BEER BEAEEXELSRALESL  EBHARE
BEHFE(CTWR) - VEEMKEEESE RS NFERA-_+tHA#E EEERHF
AERE—F_+FHCE=Z=FIH) FHANXEEERBTFHREINEES I K
FEENRTREEHREBEOFE  #-T-—FNLAR  PHIAFENLE -HE-ZT-_TFA
=18 ARARE R EREFBEE2290E8E T (ZT— L4 : BlE220887T) °

AKRRIEEES0EELRBRENR  UNEBIH AR ERNTWRIBE KA - RAFE @ B 550
BB (ZZ—NF B 10088 #IERERTHIER - ZEFRER_ZE=_ZFA=1+H2FH

cei==
I%D/ﬁ °

RIZZE—NF+A AAREBTZHERIVEK1,0008ETRREER - BRERBE RN &KE
FHHEKZAER - RAFE - ARR2BEETEK1,0008E8T(ZT—NF &) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS M HmETME NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R #EHRRME
15. Derivative Financial Instruments €MtTETH 17. Hedging Reserve B 5oh 6 0id
2020 2019 Interest rate
HK$ million  HK$ million swap contracts
BEHERLT AEEET HK$ million
FRZTIRELY
Liabilities =V BREET
Interest rate swap contracts GIESSE AL
(Note 14(a);N P (BEE 14()) Balance at 1st July 2018 —N\FLtA—B&EH (32.4)
Balance at beginning of the year FHEEER (28.7) (32.4) Cash flow hedges: WEMEF -
Settlement of interest rate swaps FE R IRILLY Transfer to finance cost (Note 21) EAMBER (MsE21) 191
2EE 13.4 19.1 Revaluation of interest rate swaps (Note 15) MEZMBARNES (FIE15) (15.4)
Revaluation of interest rate swaps Rl BRI EE 3.7
(Note 17) £ (M 17) (2.6) (154 Balance at 30th June 2019 —NERNA=ZTBES (28.7)
Balance at end of the year FRERS (17.9) (28.7)
—hFtHA—B&RR .
The carrying amounts of the derivative financial instruments are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Balance at st July 2019 (28.7)
ARRZ S MITETARENEEENEE ABE B - Cash flow hedges: G ©
Transfer to finance cost (Note 21) BV ER (H:E21) 13.4
16. Capital Fund SEES Revaluation of interest rate swaps (Note 15) MR EE (BIFE15) (2.6)
10.8
Donations from Contribution Transfer to profit or loss upon discontinuation of RIFE PR EE RS
The Hong Kong from hedging relationship (Note) (31) 17.9
Jockey Club Ocean Park Balance at 30th June 2020 —E-EEANA=THER -
Charities Trust Trust Fund Total
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
ERESSRE EHEAE Note: The MRP Commercial loans were fully and early repaid and the hedge relationship was discontinued
EREESER EEESBI e as at 30th June 2020. The cumulative amounts in hedging reserve was reclassified to income and
BERET BEEHET BEHETT expenditure account as a reclassification adjustment.
At 1st July 2018, 30th June 2019, BsE MRPEEERER - _ZFA=THEIRAEE  ¥PEERBE KL - #RHEEPHRET
SxE 3 EEEEEE B2
1st July 2019 and 30th June 2020 RRIFERENDIRAE - EIE MRS -
RZFE—-N\FtHA—H" —NEFERA
=t+HMtA—H &_ Z_TFHA=TH 450.3 24.7 475.0

The funds of Ocean Park Trust Fund are used to finance the cost of promoting the functions of Ocean Park
Corporation as specified in the Hong Kong Ocean Park Corporation Ordinance (Cap. 388).

REEE (BFRAE QR
BRAE ©

BOINE 388 E) HE - BFAREREESNESARANEREFABEARAZIE
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OCEAN PARK CORPORATION BELELT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MBHERE
18. Revenue 18. KA
(i) Disaggregation of revenue (i) DHREKEEFFEH2ZWA
2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$ million HK$ million BYEEET BERET
Admission income 413.4 1,140.6 N5HBA 413.4 1,140.6
Merchandise income [EEELAON
— sales of goods 63.7 152.2 - HEEm 63.7 152.2
— royalty fee income from - IR ETEECRE 10.9 27.2
concession retail operations 10.9 27.2
o EHRIBUA
Catering income S P T B
-HER 144. 299.
— sales of food and beverage 144.6 299.3 o - o 993
. . . - FHREREERAE 3.7 7.3
— royalty fee income from concession food operations 3.7 7.3 \
o EHIANEE-LON 32.9 64.3
In-park spending income 32.9 64.3 . n " "
Royalty fee income from concession hotel operations 4.6 3.3 REFE TR 2B AR "0 =
S A
Revenue from contracts with customers 673.8 1,694.2 EE AR 673.8 1,694.2
Other income 43.3 40.7 A 43.3 40.7
Total 717.1 1,734.9 e 717.1 1,734.9
Timing of revenue recognition BARERE R
At a point in time 604.7 1,599.1 PA— (BRI 604.7 1,599.1
Over time 69.1 95.1 1 — {IE s ] B 69.1 95.1
Total 673.8 1,694.2 g 673.8 1,694.2
Admission income, merchandise income from the sales of goods and catering income from the sales ERFBIMASEWA  REHEERAERUYA KK E HER Y RERRERIRFEUA H AFIER
of food and beverage noted above are stated before deduction for the following donations to Ocean UTRESEEARIESESEL B :

Park Conservation Foundation, Hong Kong (“OPCFHK"):
) —E_FEF—A+—HRTHNE_+HESFAEREAMASFRAXGSELE14BET

(i) one day’s admission income on the 11th January 2020, named as the 25th Conservation Day (—E—hE: —E—HE—A+-_BEETHNE—TNES*AERE A AL LI A S:
amounting to HK$1.4 million (2019: HK$3.2 million on the 24th Conservation Day on 12th 3 R ;
January 2019); ! :

(iiy  HK$1 per paid admission income (excluding (i) above) to OPCFHK amounting to HK$ 1.8 million (i) REBRAZHFRA(TEEALG) FREEE —TREBBEFABREES - HFEK

(2019: HK$5.0 million):; 1888 (ZE—NGF : BKS5088T)
(i) contribution from the sales of panda merchandise items and animal interactive programmes (i) WEHERHMEFAER LY EEFEHNRATRELBIELSAET (ZE—NF : B
amounting to HK$0.5 million (2019: HK$1.1 million); 1188
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18.

Revenue - Continued

(i)

(if)

Disaggregation of revenue - continued

(iv)  contribution from the revenue of Tuxedos Restaurant amounting to HK$0.8 million (2019:
HK$1.3 million);

(v)  contribution from the surcharge for parking on designated peak days amounting to nil (2019:
HK$0.1 million); and

(vi)  contribution from the sales of admission tickets generated from Run for Survival joint promotion
amounting to nil (2019: HK$0.2 million).

During the year, the Corporation received donation from The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust
amounting to nil (2019: HK$0.7 million) and HK$0.3 million (2019: 0.1 million) was recognised as
other income noted above.

The Corporation’s revenue from contracts with customers was derived solely from its operations in
Hong Kong during both years.

Performance obligations for contracts with customers
Revenue from admission income

Revenue from admission tickets sold is recognised at the point when tickets are accepted and
surrendered by the customer. Revenue from tickets sold for use at a future date is deferred and
recorded as contract liabilities until the tickets are surrendered or have expired.

Revenue from annual passes is recognised over time evenly over the period of their validity except for
the temporary closure of the Park.

Revenue from sales of goods and food and beverage

Revenue from sales of goods, food and beverage is recognised when control of the goods has been
transferred, being at the point the customer purchases the goods at the retail store. Payment of the
transaction price is due immediately at the point the customer purchases the goods.

Revenue from in-park spending

Revenue from in-park spending is recognised when control of the goods or services has been
transferred, being at the point the customer purchases the goods or utilises the services. Payment of
the transaction price is due immediately at the point the customer purchases the goods or utilises the
services.

Revenue from royalty fee income

Revenue from royalty fee income represents royalty fee for rights to operate in Ocean Park, i.e. sale
and distribution of the photographic products and services, sale and distribution of food and beverage
and operation of a hotel. The royalty arrangements that are based on sale and other measures are
recognised by reference to the terms of agreements.
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(i)

DHFREEFENZBA - &
(iv) RKBEBHRARBELBREK08RETL(ZZ—NF : B 1388
(v) REESEERFNRARREBRIEROT(CE—AF A% 18ET) &

(vi) RARREERRERTDHESHASFRATBREBFIEEOT(ZZ—NF %0288
JT) °

RER  ARRB B EEEF SR ECTESNBREER/EBOT(CT—NF  BB0TEE
T c EFEB0IBERT (ZT—NF B 0188 L) BEELRMAIINEMBKAS -

MER - KRREFPAHRARER B HETBNES -
BEPFANMNBENER
AZHWA

HEAGSNRAET PRI A E[ASSRER - HEARKBBERNOPIENORA B RREL
AR RAE  ZREBEEASFREM B MR K IR

BRABEERBON  FRRASERB RN B F iR -
HEEmERTWA

HEBMERRNBAEEYEHRERRER  AIRFETEERERRN - EFEBER MR
e AV R 5B -

EPUEERA

B ENRAEEM S IRGOEHRERRER  IEZFPFBERYRERRER - XPEREE
78 an Sk R AR A FE AL BN ST R S EAE ©

BRHEEABRA

FRFEERERARKEEFAENEIEERE - IRTERMRBNEEMDHE - RRNHEE
M - ARIBIEH)2E - ERHEMEMIERANSHEER ELHRASZ B IEK T IAER -
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OCEAN PARK CORPORATION BELERT OCEAN PARK CORPORATION BELELT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MR =M NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MG =M
19. Expenses by Nature EHE/ENEH 19. Expenses by Nature — Continued HRMEESENERH-E
Expenses included in operating costs are analysed as follows: Pt -
HI SRR B AT - @@ HABEWEI18FAMERNAEESF A BREESELNEREBISEEL(ZE—NEF:
BEI109EET) RAEABF ARREECIRENEERE0SEETL(ZE—LGF %04
2020 2019 BETT) B TR R -
HK$ million HK$ million
AWAMT  BEART ) AATEHEE=HEMGDERERTAREERE L ARARNEERNTRE  ANEENE
EEMER  UAETATHERRANEMBEESEMNER R85 ABGEHESEENRTRMHS
Cost of inventories sold BHFEKA 89.4 152.8 BHES o
Employee costs (Note 20) ET&H (H:E20) 699.6 771.7 T T T o S
: . el = NETHA SWEBEEII I AE L (ZF— R I113.6A&T) AR EN3TTAETT
FEEISEIE LGNS EELERAR 1536 1949 (CT—NF A 136EER) RARTMERBRHBRREH BMOT (ST NE B
Utilities AHASREHN 84.6 91.4 100 BB 7T) EKAETSWR FTH7EREE G/ - BB EEA AHOSERKEYE - #ERREN
Advertising and promotion BEER 68.8 106.3 AR RR - EEERBRASE - A TBEEF AKZERE -
Anima oo 12 12 © RoBoEEAASEIER - AATREEGE ST EERARE (A RiE A R
e -y o c =B _BFRHA= T ARBICHERAEBFAIITHRERBFRIE [ 8B KkiEE B MR
show and exhibition ORISR 88.5 1238 KRR | ABRE A AMOBEREABE 159 AAT (CF—NF B2 BET) -
Auditor’s remuneration ZEED N & 0.5 0.4 WSSO sk B W B E S EER) 2XE -
Donations (Note a) B (zEa) 5.0 11.3
Insurance REg 30.3 10.5
20. Empl =]
Professional fees, office and BHE WAERA 0 ployee Costs RIRA
others K E hE A 46.5 67.2 2020 2019
1,279.4 1,543.9 HKS$ million HK$ million
BEEET BB
Notes: Salaries, wages and other benefits M- TERHM
(Note 24(c)) A (B 24(0) 698.4 762.6

(a) This includes donations to OPCFHK amounting to HK$4.5 million (2019: HK$10.9 million) as mentioned
in note 18 above, and the value of certain administrative support services provided to OPCFHK Sersten QoS SRS R AR

amounting to HK$0.5 million (2019: HK$0.4 million). — defined contribution plans - KRGS 43.0 45.0
(b)  The Corporation engaged third party consultants to assist Management in exploring strategic 1.4 807.6
development opportunities and developing proposals for the Board's consideration. The costs incurred
by the (;orporatior} in this rfegard,htogether vxllith costs Cif cond.uctinfg feasi:ility studiefs and other rkelated Less: Amount capitalised in property HE  SFAME
Eﬁgzndltures, are funded from the accumulated surplus derived from the assets of Ocean Park Trust plant and equipment e
' N da (41.8) (35.9)
The Corporation received HK$31.1 million (2019: HK$113.6 million) in the current year of which 699.6 771.7

HK$31.1 million (2019: HK$13.6 million) related to strategic review of the Corporation and nil (2019:
HK$100 million) related to the acquisition of projects in progress under the TSWR. The amount
related to the acquisition of projects was deducted from the cost of acquisition of property, plant and
equipment while the remaining balance was credited to the income and expenditure account when
the related expenditure is incurred.

(c) During the year ended 30th June 2020, operating expenses of HK$15.9 million (2019: HK$21.1 million)
in relation to the project funded by the HKSAR Government pursuant to the “Education Tourism
Initiatives and Signature Lagoon Show Agreement” incurred by the Corporation was recognised and
netted off with reimbursements received or to be received of the same amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ri¥#EERMHE

21.

22,

Finance Costs MBEH

2020 2019
HKS$ million HK$ million
BEBHET BEBHETT

Interest costs on Government subordinated loans BT B B B R e

and Commercial loans EEERNFE 270.2 245.1
Interest costs on lease liabilities HERBEENE
£H 0.3 =
Cash flow hedges — transfer from equity R mn-8a
(Note 17) & (BsE17) 13.4 19.1
Other financing costs Hith 8175 & — 0.6
283.9 264.8
Less: Borrowing cost capitalised in property, W T AE -
plant and equipment NG
ZNI A NN (94.6) (82.6)
189.3 182.2
Other Expenses Hth&H
2020 2019

HK$ million HK$ million
BERET BEHETT

Depreciation and other loss on disposal of property, MR - HEREREZ

plant and equipment & K iH 402.6 424.4
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEFRE 5.1 -
Cash flow hedges — transfer from equity Renth-88

(Note 17) s (3E17) 17.9 —
Legal costs and other claims (Note) ERER () (5.3) 172.5

420.3 596.9
Note: The Corporation has been engaged in a formal dispute resolution process with its consultant since

BRE -

April 2017. As a result, during the year ended 30th June 2019, legal costs of HK$85.5 million were
incurred and provision of HK$87.0 million was made for other costs and expenses associated with this
process. During the year ended 30th June 2020, the Corporation incurred additional legal costs of
HK$3.1 million, and an overprovision of other costs and expenses of HK$8.4 million.

BE-E—t&FNAR AR r—EREEMETERNZBERER - Bl - BE=_ZF—NF<A
=+HLFE  EARAEEBRAASKSSSHEEL  MEEFEGBREFHEMEGERMMBSTNEES
BESIOEBIL HE_T_ZTFENAZTHLFE  AARELBINGERERABSEIIEET
VBB M ERMBAY B, S4BETT -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ri¥#ERM:E

23.

24,

Investment Income BEWRA
2020 2019
HKS$ million  HK$ million
BEEERL AKEET
Investment income comprises the followings: KEWABLE :
Interest income from bank deposits RITHEREFBHA 11.6 313
Net exchange loss on financial instruments R THEMIBITHER
and bank deposits REME L EERFRE (1.1) (1.4)
10.5 29.9
Government Grants B e &

(@) On 20th February 2019, the Corporation entered into the “Education Tourism Initiatives and
Signature Lagoon Show Agreement” with the HKSAR Government and committed to complement
the “Development Blueprint for Hong Kong'’s Tourism’s Industry” by developing and launching the
education tourism initiatives and a new lagoon show (the “Project”). The HKSAR Government will
allocate a fund totalling HK$310 million payable by instalments to the Corporation for promoting
education tourism in Hong Kong whereas the Corporation will also utilise own resources to upgrade
the Ocean Park’s facilities and set up promotion efforts in the major source markets.

During the year ended 30th June 2020, the Corporation received Government funding totalling HK$61.8
million (2019: HK$26.3 million) of which HK$31.1 million (2019: HK$18.0 million) and HK$19.8 million
(2019: HK$6.8 million) related to capital expenditure and operating expenses respectively, and the
remaining balance of HK$10.9 million (2019: HK$1.5 million) was funding received but not yet utilised.

—NE-ATH  ARFREEBRRBTRR [HEKERE MRS E RG] - 88
?*)Efﬂ?&ﬂj%&ﬁmﬂ/ﬁibﬁ%ﬁt R (BB BOIRG [EBIRBEXERER] - FEEH
TREBRFBAS BT RAARARRHARAEE 310 BB T 2B - UEEHRETIE -

 E—E_TFNAZTHLEFE  ARRRINBTRRBEAEE6 8B (ZE—NF
B 263BBIT) HREEII1GET(ZE—NEF: /%ﬁ%z18.05%%)?&%@519.85%%(47
—NF  Be8HEL) NHEEAT HAELY HAR - EpEE10988E T (ZE—NF
BE15HERT) BEWEEERERMNEBMAR

(b)  The Legislative Council Finance Committee (“FC") has approved the funding support via FC Paper
No. FCR(2020-21)15 at its meeting on 29th May 2020. The HKSAR Government is providing a new
commitment of HK$5,425.6 million for providing funding to support the operation of the Corporation
from 1st July 2020 to 30th June 2021, to repay the Commercial loans and related financing costs and
to settle the costs for completing the Corporation’s Tai Shue Wan Redevelopment Project.

As at 30th June 2020, HK$3,079.0 million was received and recognised as Government grants to repay
the Commercial loans and related financing costs of the Corporation.

EeMKZES(TRIMZE ) CE_S-TFRAA - T A BNGE D HERFK (FCR(2020-
21155 M) - AEBFRBFRMER5,425.6 BT AR  UXBARRE_ZT_TF
TtA—RAE-Z-_—FRXA=TEHHNEE EEBREERNEEREER - URINTK
A EERFTENER

R-ZZE-ZFRA=1TH BRIV EREERARFBEERLEEREXNANBRTHBE REE
3,079.0B&TT °
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OCEAN PARK CORPORATION

BENELT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MBEERE
24. Government Grants — Continued BIF#iBi& - &

(0) During the year ended 30th June 2020, HK$15.1 million (2019: nil) was recognised in relation to the
Employment Support Scheme of the Anti-epidemic Fund, which was netted off with employee costs,
and HK$4.7 million (2019: nil) was received and recognised as Government grants in relation to the
Catering Business (Social Distancing) Subsidy Scheme and other schemes of the Anti-epidemic Fund.
BHE_Z_TFXA=THILFE  ERNENEESHOREEAZRAEL 151 B8ET(ZF
—NEF ) WEBTEREEE UREREREESHBRE (ERER) Mt 8 REM
SFEIREIN ERAEE47TBET (ZE—NF  |) WBEREBE -

25.  Net Cash From Operating BEEEMNRS
Activities
2020 2019
HK$ million  HK$ million
BEEHERT A¥EE81

Surplus (deficit) for the year rEERE (FE) 1,921.8 (557.3)

Adjustments for: JHEIER -

— Depreciation and loss on disposal of - %% L HRE AR

property, plant and equipment PrEE Ramsn 402.6 424.4

— Depreciation of right-of-use assets - EFRREEERE 5.1 -

— Finance costs (Note 21) - BEBR (MFE21) 189.3 182.2

— Interest income from financial instruments - ﬁﬁlﬂ&ﬁiﬁﬁ%\

and bank deposits (Note 23) EO SO ONC IEPE) (11.6) (31.3)

— Government grants - BTAEEE (3,114.7) (21.1)

— Fair value loss (gain) of - @FESC ATEEX

club debenture (zs) 0.5 (0.9)
Operating deficit before changes EEESEHAN
in working capital ReEBR (607.0) (4.0)

Changes in working capital: HEEeHE

Increase in inventories FEE N (10.7) (2.6)

Decrease (increase) in trade and E%&EW%WﬁQ\

other receivables (#h0) 51.3 (3.9)

Decrease (increase) in current account with EE@57$®1§%%%$E@

Ocean Park Trust Fund FEPRERTER > (HE0) 5.7 (13.7)

(Decrease) increase in trade and féf%)\}ﬁmﬂﬁﬁﬁ

other payables R A>) #n (134.0) 229.1

(Decrease) increase in contract liabilities aHaE Ol ) Em (41.0) 48.7

Net cash (used in) from operations EEELE (FTH) F e (735.7) 253.6
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26.

27.

Contingencies

N N
2 ETE

KRRR

Guarantees totalling HK$24.3 million (2019: HK$24.4 million) has provided by a bank to the Corporation’s

utility providers.

ARBAZRAMEERBIRETEHER 24388 T (ZT—NF : B 244BET) OIRITHER -

Commitments

(@) Capital commitments

&
AR

Capital expenditure approved at the end of each reporting period but not yet incurred is as follows:

REEREHEBIDREENEARFRIOT

Contracted but not provided for

Authorised but not contracted for

(b)  Operating lease commitments

2020 2019

HK$ million HK$ million

BETET BEEETT

EHEEE S 262.6 787.4
EREERETA 515.0 425.0
777.6 1,212.4

LERERE

The future aggregate minimum lease payments for leased facilities under non-cancellable operating

leases are as follows:

RETAFEROZE LR EE B RENNSIEHENS@BNT

Within one year

Later than one year and not later
than five years

—%FR

—FULEEAR
BBhF
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OCEAN PARK CORPORATION BELELT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS M5 RMcE
28. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising From Financing Activities 28. MEITHMELE A ENYHIRE
The table below details changes in the Corporation’s liabilities arising from financing activities, including both TRAMALNTRERME TS 2 EEES  BIERENIFRES &S - RAME TS ZEBE  FHHRESR
cash and non-cash ;hanges. Ligpilit{es arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or DHAKBEL R e AN T B REAERANNEAREEIHESL R BE -
future cash flows will be, classified in the Corporation’s statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.
BT B E X BEER RS HEAE nE
G BYEERT BY¥EER B¥AExT B¥AEx BYEER
overnment
subordinated Commercial Interest Lease \
loan loan payable liabilities Total A—ZE—\FtHA—H 3,047.5 1,710.0 1,076.9 - 5,834.4
HKS million HK$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HK$ million &R SR 630.0 (90.0) (61.3) — 478.7
s8R - - 264.8 — 264.8
At 1st July 2018 3,047.5 1,710.0 1,076.9 - 5,834.4
Financing cash flows 630.0 (90.0) (61.3) — 478.7 RZZE—NFA=+H 3,677.5 1,620.0 1,280.4 — 6,577.9
Finance cost - - 264.8 - 264.8 PRIAE BB R
F16HMNTE - - - 8.2 8.2
At 30th June 2019 3,677.5 1,620.0 1,280.4 - 6,577.9 \
Effect of adoption of Eé—?fﬂitﬂ —H
HKFRS 16 - _ - 8.2 8.2 (&) 3,677.5 1,620.0 1,280.4 8.2 6,586.1
BEHRSR - (1,620.0) (75.8) (5.3) (1,701.1)
At 1st July 2019 (Restated) 3,677.5 1,620.0 1,280.4 8.2 6,586.1 ST E B B _ 29 29
Financing cash flows - (1,620.0) (75.8) (5.3) (1,701.1) FEzR B B B 0.2) 0.2)
New lease entered - - - 2.9 2.9 Bl 762 i _ 7836 0.3 783.9
Exchange difference - - - (0.2) (0.2)
Finance costs - - 283.6 0.3 283.9 R-ZEB-ZEFXA=+H 3,677.5 - 1,488.2 5.9 5,171.6
At 30th June 2020 3,677.5 - 1,488.2 5.9 5,171.6
29. MBAEXH
29. Related Party Transactions MREE—FALTRARABENEERIEEEH AR R SIHARARNI BRI LREBEEEATEN -
A TEIRRAR RN - R T ERMBEHMRAWBEORBE T R FI - NRABEAFEILREHM
Parties are considered to be related to the Corporation if the party or the Corporation has the ability, directly or AR5 -
indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or
operational decisions. Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Corporation has no NEIEEBK B RIMEEATEREN o
other related party transactions during the year.
The members of the Board of the Corporation do not receive any remuneration for the both years. 30. Eﬁgk;ﬂ

=T -—EENAS TR BEABMGEE 2 EE AR (- E— L5 7HE AN o

Attendance at the Park for the year ended 30th June 2020 is 2.2 million (2019: 5.7 million).
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31. Financial Risk Management

31.1 Categories of financial instruments

2020 2019
HK$ million  HK$ million

Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost 657.3 1,201.6

Financial assets at FVTPL 3.3 3.8

Financial liabilities
Amortised cost 5,391.4 7,092.7

Derivative financial instruments 17.9 28.7

31.2 Financial risk factors

The Corporation’s major financial instruments include trade and other receivables, current account with Ocean
Park Trust Fund, bank balances and cash, club debenture, trade and other payables, Government subordinated
loans and Commercial loans, interest payable on Government subordinated loans, lease liabilities and derivative
financial instruments. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The Corporation’s
activities expose it to market risk (including foreign currency risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Corporation’s overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Corporation’s
financial performance. The Corporation purchases foreign currency to hedge certain risk exposures.

Risk management is carried out by the Corporation under policies approved by the Board. The Board provides
written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas such as foreign
exchange risk.

(a) Market risk
() Foreign exchange risk

The Corporation purchases items internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from various currency exposures. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions. The Board has established a policy to require the Corporation to manage this
foreign exchange risk against the Corporation’s functional currency by acquiring foreign
currency at the date the purchase is determined. Foreign exchange risk arises when future
purchases are denominated in a currency that is not in Hong Kong dollars.

The Corporation’s purchases were principally denominated in United States dollars and Hong
Kong dollars. As United States dollars are pegged to Hong Kong dollars, there is no significant
impact to the deficit for the year as a result of fluctuations in United States dollars against Hong
Kong dollars.
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2020 2019
BREEBRX A¥BET

CHMEE
RS ATENEREE 657.3 1,201.6
AT EFE AR AL RIERNEREE 3.3 3.8
SRMEE
RESRKAGTENEREE 5,391.4 7,092.7
AT EFE RS AZHIERNEREE 17.9 28.7

31.2 HMERKBER

ARRNEZERTABRERES REMRER - @5 F ABEEHESNENRKE - RITEHREAS - @/
Br BHLEMENT BNMNBERIEBEXEENR BANBERENFE HEAGERITESHE
TR -Z5eRTEANFBREAMEHRE ARANEHAZTSEAR (EEERRAR RERE -
NEFEMNERRRLRERERR) ERERMADESER - ARRNEERREEFSEETNUMBEHS
TR USRKEBERELARRAMBERENBESNTE - RARBEIMNEAL HE T AR
R o

RRERHARNTHIRREZTHIENBRNT - EFRABRRBRERERITEEEES - TAE TR EHE
I anSNE [\ B S HR AR

(@) TEEAR
(i) SMNERE
ARREEHBEY MR AR ZEIREEMELNIMNERR - JMNERR KB RKREE
X5 EERERINMEE - BRARRMBENSNINECRENEEEERE B E BREING
NERERETNGEEEARNINERR - INERBRNARRBENEENSBILIFEBHER
BEx-

RAFER - ARARNBEYRIBEURTRBREREREN - MR TiEBTi - T
AETHRBHARANEBERYBEEATE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. Financial Risk Management - Continued

31.2 Financial risk factors — continued

(a)

(b)

Market risk - continued
(i) Interest rate risk

The Corporation’s interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings. The current borrowings
for the MRP comprise of a HKSAR Government loan, which is issued at a fixed rate. The current
borrowing for the TSWR comprise of a HKSAR Government loan, which is charged at floating
rate with reference to the interest rate of Government’s fiscal reserves placed with the Exchange
Fund.

These loans expose the Corporation to cash flow and fair value interest rate risk. Alternatives to
the HKSAR Government loan for the MRP and the TSWR are not available to the Corporation.
The HKSAR Government loan for the TSWR is currently charged at floating rates. The impact to
the surplus or deficit of a shift in the interest rate is considered not significant.

The Corporation is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to the fixed rate bank
deposits and fixed rate lease liabilities. However, Management considers the fair value interest
rate risk on the fixed deposits is insignificant.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The carrying amounts of cash deposits at banks, trade and other receivables and current account
with Ocean Park Trust Fund represent the Corporation’s maximum exposure to credit risks in relation
to the financial assets. Cash and bank balances were placed with banks with external credit ratings
of investment grade to mitigate the risk. For trade and other receivables and current account with
Ocean Park Trust Fund, the Corporation reviews the recoverable amount of each debtor to ensure that
adequate provision is made for irrecoverable amounts. The Corporation does not hold any collateral
as security. In this regard, the Management of the Corporation considers that the Corporation’s credit
risk is significantly reduced. In addition, the Corporation performs impairment assessment under ECL
model upon application of HKFRS 9 on trade and other receivables and current account with Ocean
Park Trust Fund individually.

Management assessed the expected loss on trade receivables individually with Lifetime ECL by
estimation based on historical observed default rates, general economic conditions of the industry
in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the current as well as the forward-looking
information at the reporting date.

In determining the 12m ECL for other receivables and current account with Ocean Park Trust Fund,
Management has made periodic individual assessment on the recoverability, based on historical
settlement records, past experience, and also forward-looking information.

As at 30th June 2020, the expected losses rate is insignificant, given there is no history of significant
defaults and insignificant impact from forward-looking estimates.

156 Annual Report 2019-2020 ¥ #& 3 &

N N
2T ETE

31. RBMERBER-I§
31.2 HMERKEER-E

(a)

(b)

misEkE - &
(i) FEEE

AABWNMERRRERPER - BAITARNEF AREHER BN EREIE AR EH =
AENEERRITHRERNES - MAESFAEEMERABBEREL VBN ERGFE
MEEER  MARAKEESEZAINEREE T AARERBNFREINEES NI
RN R Z BN S BT BRI TRERFER

BWEERCARBAZAFRERER A FEN AR - [ TANEFAEEHERASI N
ARAEEEZASNBUNERINARBLEEMA] HER - BRAREE 25 SNERA
SRR AFBARG R - NEREHHBRIBIBOZERR ST -

AR AEEGSRETHERTEFHNETAHERER BABOATENEER - 4T - B2E
RETHERHAFENEEETA -

= ARk KR ER G

ARREREMEENRRERRREENRITREFN - EZHREMBU - AREREFAE
SREESMERKRENREE - BE MIRITEREFREINEE B R AIE R IRTTH LORE
R - ERNE 5 REMEEFAREEFARGEAEESHERKIE - ARRISFEERERN
WElISHE  BARCIEL RHREE ARRYESATAERRESLR - SAtME - BEERR
ARRZEERBEREREE - i - RRAREREBYBRE LLFEIREREBHMEEERE
BEAE 5 R E MR & g AR (EEES AR RIBET R ER G -

EEEREZRUREL 2 HRRAEEBRENERFE - URELIBRRENR - GHALE
PIEABITENBRBRENN - KRNHE B EAER kAT EE R RS -

REEH R R g ABEEESHR T —EARMEERRELEFER - ERER AT @Y
ELERIFHE - WEZEBEELE  BEREBOKREATEEER - SINAAREEENRFEED
ZELENE  WREARRREERREEXEMEYRRZ AEEERRETERX -

BE_TZ-ZFA=TH ERNFPIERSHERCELNEEGTZEIK  BEARFER
EBABENTPNRERERERGE -
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OCEAN PARK CORPORATION BELELT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MR =M
31.  Financial Risk Management - Continued 31. MBEAREHE - &
31.2 Financial risk factors — continued 31.2 MBRRER- &
() Liquidity risk (0 HEBELER
Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, RENABDECRAREEEARACNRENEEBE S BRCAHGEERENEHEEESE
the availability of funding from an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to B MBRNEEMSGREE - ARAREBEEHRRSRE ERRDESHE (BERRINEE
close out market positions. The Corporation monitors its liquidity reserve (comprising undrawn credit ME - SRmTEAEMBESRIRSEH) -

facilities, financial instruments and cash and cash equivalents) on the basis of expected cash flows.

TRETARAFANERMABEZRARNIEAER  RERAAEREZS 0B ANRSRIRET

The table below analyses the Corporation’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based ST - EERBRBENSEALLMABENES RS « ARTEHZERA - ftE+F—EARX
on the remaining period at the statement of financial position date to the contractual maturity date. B ER ) A A AR A B Hﬁﬁ@ .

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within
12 months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

hnE FERE ~A=+H
Weighted FHFE —FUT —Z2RFAN AFNUE RELTE CHRAE
N e == Q}%” B o N4 B o Sk BB o= JHC B o=
average Between Total Carry % BE¥BEET AEKAEET A¥EET A¥EERT A¥EET
interest  Less than 1and 5 Over undiscounted amount at
rate 1 year years 5 years cash flow  30th June R=ZB=ZF
% HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million A~A=1+H
BT B ER 4.19 — 2,911.9 3,946.6 6,858.5 5,165.6
At 30th June 2020 EE Y E N ANEN TEH 225.8 - - 225.8 225.8
Government subordinated 225.8 29119 39466  7,0843  5391.4
loans 419 - 2,9119 3,9466 6,8585 5,1656 _— e )
Trade and other payables N/A 225.8 - - 225.8 225.8
HEAE 3.71 4.8 1.4 = 6.2 5.9
S B _ S EmEpste
Lease liabilities 3.71 4.8 1.4 - 6.2 5.9 ITETR - F8aH
- - - - - IR A 3.79 18.6 — - 18.6 17.9
Derivatives — net settlement
PA— T
Interest rate swap contracts 3.79 18.6 = = 18.6 17.9 B/\\f = _jli
—_— e ———— —— NA=1H
BB EZR R
GEOANE REER 3.70 2383 3,703.3 4,636.7 8,578.3 6,577.3
Government subordinated . - o .
loans and Commercial Z 5 Kk H AR R TEf 515.4 - - 515.4 515.4
loans 3.70 238.3 3,703.3 4,636.7 8,578.3 6,577.3 7537 37033 4,636.7 9.093.7 7.092.7
Trade and other payables N/A 515.4 - - 515.4 515.4
753.7 3,703.3  4,636.7 9,093.7  7,092.7 PTHET R - FHEEE
R HFLA 3.79 15.4 14.0 = 29.4 28.7
Derivatives — net settlement - - -
Interest rate swap contracts 3.79 15.4 14.0 - 29.4 28.7
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OCEAN PARK CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31.
31.3

Financial Risk Management — Continued

Fair value of the Corporation’s financial assets and financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Corporation’s financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the
level of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised (levels 1 to 3) based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable.

Fair value at

Financial assets/ 30th June 30th June Fairvalue  Valuation technique(s)
(financial liabilities) 2020 2019 hierarchy  and key inputs

HK$ million HK$ million
Club debenture 33 3.8 Level 2 Reference to the latest bid

price quoted in over-the-
counter market.

Discounted cash flow. Future
cash flows are estimated
based on forward interest
rates (from observable yield
curves at the end of the
reporting period) and
contracted interest rates,
discounted at a rate that
reflects the credit risk of
various counterparties.

Interest rate swap (17.9) (28.7) Level 2
contracts classified as

financial instruments

There were no significant unobservable inputs used in determining the fair value of the above financial assets
or liabilities. There were no transfers into and out of Level 2 during the years ended 30th June 2020 and 2019.
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TRBEIAFE(CERMB/RERMEEAZRE)  ARARFEFEGAREZ IBREESERY
RNFHEFEAARED Z AFERBRMN (F—EF=4) °

R-B=¥F K- A%
~B=+8 NAZ+E ATE  SERWER
SREE/(SREAMN) > APE TATE EERS IBHARE
B EET BEEET
BEEERTEHES 33 38 BB SEBARSTSRFIEE
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AHIHY R TR Al I 25 AR
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B R SR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE TRUSTEE OF OCEAN PARK TRUST FUND

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Ocean Park Trust Fund (the “Fund”) set out on pages 166 to 195, which
comprise the balance sheet as at 30th June 2020, and the income and expenditure account, statement of changes in
accumulated funds and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Fund as at 30th June
2020, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Ocean Park Corporation Ordinance (Cap. 388).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code"”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Other Information

The Trustee of the Fund is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Trustee and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Trustee of the Fund is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Ocean Park Corporation Ordinance (Cap. 388), and
for such internal control as the Trustee determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustee is responsible for assessing the Fund’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting

unless the Trustee either intend to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE TRUSTEE OF OCEAN PARK TRUST FUND

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with the provision of the Hong Kong Ocean Park Corporation Ordinance (Cap. 388), and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Fund's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Trustee.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Trustee's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23rd September 2020
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OCEAN PARK TRUST FUND

BALANCE SHEET
AT 30TH JUNE 2020

Current assets
Interest receivables

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Account and other payables

Net assets

Financed by:
Accumulated funds

Mr Lau Ming-wai, GBS, JP
Chairman

for Ocean Park Corporation as Trustee

BFELEGEEES
BEEERR
AR _E_EBFXA=1+H
2020 2019
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T BT T BET T
REEE
FEUFI B 3 288 1,321
BAFERABZN
CREE 4 64,892 68,144
RITEFNRIRS 121,905 154,981
187,085 224,446
REaE
JE AT BR SR R LAt B A5 3Kk 6 8,322 14,029
EEFE 178,763 210,417
BEWRRF :
ZEES 8 178,763 210,417

LS 1E 5L A GBS, JP
ENBENAREE
EAEZTENEEABRREK

The notes on pages 170 to 195 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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OCEAN PARK TRUST FUND
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2020

Interest income
Dividend income

Net fair value (loss) gain on
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Management fees
Auditor’s remuneration
Bank charges

Net foreign exchange loss
Others

Funding for Ocean Park Corporation

Deficit for the year

%H

B MA
B BMA
BAHER AR
THMEEATFE
(E18) Weah 588

EEE
AN &
RITEM

PEE BT 1R% 5R
Hit

AEFAEARREES

rEEEHR

BELCEGEKESR
REX

BE_ZT_ZFEXA=1THILFEE
2020 2019

Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
Mot BET T BT
2,729 4,187

520 712

(2,548) 3,166

(354) (454)

(21) (21)

(1) (28)

(876) (453)

5 _

(546) 7,109

9 (31,108) (113,640)

8 (31,654) (106,531)

Total comprehensive expense is the same as deficit for the year. Accordingly, a statement of comprehensive income is

not presented.

AEEERENNFEAFE I - AILE5IHGaKaR

The notes on pages 170 to 195 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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OCEAN PARK TRUST FUND BELEIGEESR OCEAN PARK TRUST FUND BELEETEES
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED FUNDS ZRFE2EH)% STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS HRanExR
AT 30TH JUNE 2020 BE—ES"_SFNA=THILESEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2020 BE_E"EFAZTHLEE

2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000 Note HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT LhEs BT T BT
Total accumulated funds at beginning RNETIRERIE Cash flows from operating activities = EEFBELENRERE
of the year Ex 210,417 316,948 . e
L Deficit for the year FEEIE (31,654) (106,531)
Deficit and total comprehensive expense FREEBBEK d' . AR
for the year FEbE (31,654) (106,531) Adjustments for: ST
— Interest income — FIEUA (2,729) (4,187)
Total accumulated funds at end RERNBRE — Net fair value (loss) gain on financial - Tﬁ/_&%@%)\ﬁéé}l
of the year g4 178,763 210,417 assets at fair value through profit §@9%§@$@ (E18)
or loss Yoas SR 2,548 (3,166)
— Net foreign exchange loss - [EH BRI 876 453
Operating loss before changes in %@éﬁé_ﬁ@]ﬁﬁm
working capital REEE (30,959) (113,431)
Changes in working capital: HEEeEY -
— Increase (decrease) in account and - J?EHEE%&E@J}EH%{
other payables 2 ORd) 9 7)
— (Decrease) increase in current account - 55157:19?73}1575/‘7&5'5
with Ocean Park Corporation BEIE ORi>) #n (5,716) 13,715
Net cash used in operation EEFRANFES (36,666) (99,723)
Interest received EUH S 3,762 3,799
Net cash used in operating activities SEEFEARNFRS (32,904) (95,924)
Cash flows from investing activities REZHEENRERE
Net withdrawal (placements) of fixed odl \( ﬁj&) FRE /H‘Hfl
deposits held at banks with original f}gi@:1)ﬂ§l‘ﬁﬁﬁ
maturity over three months TEHATF SUFRE 82,242 (9,088)
Proceeds from sale of financial assets HERANTEEET A
at fair value through profit or loss BENEREE 289 68,083
Net cash generated from investing &;%E@JEEE@
activities FRE 82,531 58,995
Net increase (decrease) in RERRLESEYFEM
cash and cash equivalents (R2) 49,627 (36,929)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHREMIRSEFEY
beginning of the year 46,365 83,294
Cash and cash equivalents at
mN i
end of the year FRASRRSSHY 5 95,992 46,365

The notes on pages 170 to 195 are an integral part of these financial statements.
1702 F195 A HMI B A IR — 2D ©

The notes on pages 170 to 195 are an integral part of these financial statements.
1702 E195 B A B AT BImMKRE —FH ©
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OCEAN PARK TRUST FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1

General Information

Ocean Park Trust Fund (the “Fund”) was established on 1st July 1987 from an endowment of HK$200
million granted by The Hong Kong Jockey Club (Charities) Limited. The Trustee of the Fund is Ocean Park
Corporation, and the funds are used to finance the cost of promoting the functions of Ocean Park Corporation
as specified in the Hong Kong Ocean Park Corporation Ordinance (Cap. 388) (the “Ordinance”). The address
of its registered office and principal place of operation is Ocean Park Corporation, Aberdeen, Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in thousands units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise
stated. These financial statements were approved for issue by the Trustee on 23rd September 2020.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”, which term collectively includes Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the requirements of the Ordinance.
The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of financial instruments, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires Management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Fund’s accounting policies. There are no areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements.

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current year

The Fund has applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time
in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

The application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Fund'’s result and financial positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
financial statements.
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OCEAN PARK TRUST FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued
Basis of preparation - continued

New or revised standards that have been issued but not yet effective

The Fund has not early adopted the following new and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective at 30th June 2020:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions®

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework®
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
HKAS 28 and its Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current’

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Definition of Material*
HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before
Intended Use®

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract®

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform*
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020°

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2021

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on or after the

beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after 1st January 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st June 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2023

N o v~ W

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs, a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting was issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July
2020.
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OCEAN PARK TRUST FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1

2.2

2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued
Basis of preparation - continued

New or revised standards that have been issued but not yet effective — continued
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 “Definition of Material”

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of material by including additional guidance and
explanations in making materiality judgements. In particular, the amendments:

o include the concept of “obscuring” material information in which the effect is similar to omitting or
misstating the information;

o replace threshold for materiality influencing users from “could influence” to “could reasonably be
expected to influence”; and

o include the use of the phrase “primary users” rather than simply referring to “users” which was

considered too broad when deciding what information to disclose in the financial statements.

The amendments also align the definition across all HKFRSs and will be mandatorily effective for the Fund’s
annual period beginning on 1st July 2020. The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of the Fund but may affect the presentation and
disclosures in the financial statements.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned above, the Trustee of the Fund anticipates that
the application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the Fund’s financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Fund operates (“the functional currency”). The financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Fund'’s functional and presentation currency.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets are recognised immediately in income and expenditure account.
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OCEAN PARK TRUST FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued
Financial instruments - continued

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for financial assets and are presented as interest
income.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and
o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal

and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL").
(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt instruments / receivables subsequently measured at FVTOCI.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below).
For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit impaired.
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OCEAN PARK TRUST FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets — continued

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses recognised in income and expenditure account. The
net gain or loss recognised in income and expenditure account is included in the “net fair value gain
on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Fund recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL") on financial assets which are subject
to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including interest receivables and bank balance). The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Fund's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting date
as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Fund measures the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL for financial assets, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Fund recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Fund
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Fund considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in
the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;
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OCEAN PARK TRUST FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

(ii)

(iii)

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor; and

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Fund presumes that the credit risk has

increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past

due, unless the Fund has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Fund regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has been a

significant increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable

of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Fund considers an event of default occurs when information

developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its

creditors, including the Fund, in full.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of default that have a detrimental impact

on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset

is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(0 the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not

otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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OCEAN PARK TRUST FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Fund writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Fund'’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in income and expenditure account.

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude
of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default
and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information. Estimation
of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined with the respective
risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Fund in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Fund expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated based on amortised cost
of the financial asset.

The Fund recognises an impairment gain or loss in income and expenditure account for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying amount.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Fund derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Fund neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Fund recognises its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Fund retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Fund continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in income and expenditure
account.
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OCEAN PARK TRUST FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued
Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including account and other payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Interest and dividend income
Interest and dividend income is recognised on an accruals basis.

(@ Interest income from bank deposits and securities is accrued on a time-apportioned basis by reference
to the principal outstanding and rate applicable.

(b) Dividend income from financial instruments is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Fund takes into account the characteristics of the asset and liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date, except
for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1st April 2019) or HKAS 17 (before
application of HKFRS 16), and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance

of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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OCEAN PARK TRUST FUND BELEETEESR OCEAN PARK TRUST FUND BELEEREESR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BiFiHRRME NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bi#iRRME
3. Interest Receivables FEF 2 5. Bank Balances and Cash BTRERES
The amounts are aged less than 30 days and represent interest receivables due from banks. 2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
ZERERER DN =1T0 - W2 REKRITHE - BETT BT
. ) ) - i - - REBAAR=EAK
4. Financial Assets at Fair Value BROFE ARG F'Xgﬁ?g?ﬁg’,c’;ftﬁr?{;’ ;E ?ﬁr’;ﬁiﬁvﬁ,ﬂm AR HO8RTT 5 B8
through Profit or Loss eREE or less =% 95,031 39,857
i RITFRRIRE
The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are held by the independent investment managers at s it ik et b e RITHREAD 261 6,508
the end of the reporting period are:
: . Cash and cash equivalents He MREZEEY 95,992 46,365
MRBERRHBIRELEFANRZAFEFABRNSREENT ¢ q | ] R —
Fixed deposits held at banks with original REIHR B = 1A A
2020 2019 maturity over three months HYERITE B3 AX 25,913 108,616
HK$'000 HK$'000 Bank balances and cash RITREF KRS 121,905 154,981
BT BT T
X The weighted average effective interest rate on fixed deposits held at banks with original maturity over three
Assets ’E months was 1.16% (2019: 2.16%); these deposits have a weighted average maturity of approximately 182
Listed unit trust FHEMEFEES 14,890 17,402 days (2019: 315 days). At 30th June 2020 and 2019, bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates.
Unlisted unit trust FLTEBELEFES 50,002 50,742

The carrying amounts of the bank balances and cash are denominated in the following currencies:

64,892 68,144

FHEBEE=EANRITERFROMEFIERNER116E (ZF—NF : 2.16[F) ° F5 A 0%
The carrying amounts of the financial instruments are denominated in the following currencies: ;fif% 1828 (ZF—N%F:3150) - REF=FER=F-NERA=TH - RITRHRERITHS

AESZ BT AREEATIIESEE "
RITREFRIREHNREBEN TIIERHE

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000 2020 2019
BT T BETT HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Hong Kong dollars B 14,890 17,402
_ S A
United States dollars ETT 50,002 50,742 Hong Kong dollars ok 66,054 99,933
64.892 68 144 United States dollars ETT 55,851 55,048

121,905 154,981
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OCEAN PARK TRUST FUND BELEETEESR OCEAN PARK TRUST FUND BELEEREESR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R #EHRRME NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R #EHRRME
6. Account and Other Payables FE f+1 R % B Lt BB 4+ % 8. Accumulated Fund Z2HEES
2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT T BETT
Current account with Ocean Park Y=y SNETYNC]L:Y Endowment granted by The Hong Kong EEEGE (’Zé:n%:
Corporation (Note 7) ESRBETE (fEE7) 8,173 13,889 Jockey Club (Charities) Limited BRARHBR 200,000 200,000
TR K , =
Account payables Jtﬁ;%ﬂ 1 e Accumulated retained surplus ZREERBRA
E 8
Accruals BREMA 21 21 — At beginning of the year - F KRR 10,417 116,948
Eae 14022 — Deficit for the year - FEEE (31,654) (106,531)
The carrying values of account and other payables approximate their fair values. _ At end of the year _EREE (21,237) 10,417
PR 3 R EL AR R 3R M0 A (R BRE AR ES © 178,763 210417
7. Current Account with ot b B /N VNG 9, Funding for Ocean Park MBFAELT
Ocean Park Corporation ERER Corporation RS
2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BB T BT T BETT
Balance payable at beginning of the year EY R s8R (13,889) (174) Funding for Ocean Park Corporation r@ﬁ@@ﬁ
B/t
Audit fee paid by Ocean Park Corporation =Y /NF-TVNSIIRY = SnleE 113,640
on behalf of the Fund REEXH)
ZEHE B (21) (21) Ocean Park Corporation engaged third party consultants to perform strategic review of the Park and managed
Staff costs paid by Ocean Park Corporation N T IEe Tai Shug V;/agnofs?evelg%rggnt Project, of which certain costs are funded by Ocean Park Trust Fund during
on behalf of the Fund ARG H e year ende une ,
SIRM (55) (54) The above funding arrangements were all approved in the meetings of the Board of Ocean Park Corporation,
Other expenses paid by Ocean Park Corporation AFERBARR which acts as Trustee of Ocean Park Trust Fund.
on behalf of the Fund AEEXRH
Hfth & H (1) - BFEAERREINEERGEERENSF AEERBERAZREREEAGEERTE - FHER
Funding for Ocean Park Corporation (Note 9) RN FN-NGIE - HEFARGRESERAFE_S_TFA=THEX -
ié@(l}ﬁg\fg) (31,108) (113,640) J//\J:ihlgﬁﬁﬁi/jjéijé —\1—\—;%%/\8"]_’;%/\ ‘i‘q"g _\ _\—J E%%% "%J:?f?&
e s A EFIRRBHSEEF AR ETEESNREA-BFRARRR - = A Y
Payments made during the year BT EFABERAR] 36,901 100,000 ” T e TR T -
Balance payable at end of the year FREN (8,173) (13,889) . __
10. Related Party Transactions RS X%
Current account with Ocean Park Corporation is unsecured, interest-free, and repayable on demand. Parties are considered to be related to the Fund if the party or the Fund has the ability, directly or indirectly, to
control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational
B AE AT REIR S S R EEE - B AREREE o decisions. Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Fund has no other related

party transactions during the year.

MREXE—FALTIAES RN BEENRERGIRNESIEAESNUBHLLERREHEEATES -
IEATEIRAAE ST - IR TEAMBRERABENER TS RESEARFEILHE HAM
B S -
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OCEAN PARK TRUST FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. Financial Risk Management

11.1  Categories of financial instruments

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost 122,193 156,302
Financial assets at FVTPL 64,892 68,144
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost 8,301 14,008

11.2  Financial risk factors

The Fund'’s major financial instruments include interest receivables, bank balances and cash, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, current account with Ocean Park Corporation and account payables.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The Fund’s activities expose it to
market risk (including foreign exchange risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Fund'’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Fund’s financial performance. The Fund purchases foreign currency to hedge certain
risk exposures.

Risk management is carried out by the Fund under policies approved by the Trustee. The Trustee provides
written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas such as
foreign exchange risk.

(@)  Market risk

() Foreign exchange risk

The Fund is exposed to foreign exchange risk as the Fund holds financial assets, including
financial instruments which are denominated in United States dollars.

As United States dollars are pegged to Hong Kong dollars, there is no significant impact to the
deficit for the year as a result of fluctuations in United States dollars against Hong Kong dollars.
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2020 2019
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SREE
BERK AT EN S REE 122,193 156,302
BATEFABGHNSREE 64,892 68,144
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OCEAN PARK TRUST FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11.

11.2

Financial Risk Management - Continued

Financial risk factor — continued

(a)

(b)

(9

Market risk — continued
(i) Price risk

The Fund is exposed to price risk because investments held by the Fund are classified at fair value
through the income and expenditure account. To manage its price risk arising from investments,
the Fund diversifies its portfolio in accordance with the limits set by the Trustee.

At 30th June 2020, the Fund’s investments consist of two unit trusts. If the unit prices have
increased/decreased by 10% with all other variables held constant, deficit (2019: deficit) for
the year would have been HK$6.5 million (2019: HK$6.8 million) lower/higher (2019: lower/
higher), as a result of increases/decreases of unit prices of these investments.

(i) Interest rate risk

The Fund is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to the fixed rate bank
deposits. However, the Trustee considers the fair value interest rate risk on the fixed deposits is
insignificant.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The carrying amounts of cash deposits at banks, financial instruments and interest receivables represent
the Fund’s maximum exposure to credit risks in relation to the financial assets. Cash and bank balances
are placed with banks with external credit ratings of investment grade to mitigate the risk. All financial
instruments purchased have external credit ratings of investment grade to mitigate the risk. Account
and other receivables are derived from the financial instruments and the credit risk is considered
minimal.

In addition, the Fund performs impairment assessment under expected credit losses model upon
application of HKFRS 9 on cash deposit at banks, financial instruments and interest receivable
individually.

Management assessed the expected loss on cash deposit at banks and interest receivable individually
by estimation based on historical observed default rates, general economic conditions of the industry
in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the current as well as the forward-looking
information at the reporting date.

As at 30th June 2020, the expected losses rate is insignificant, given there is no history of significant
defaults and insignificant impact from forward-looking estimates.

Liquidity risk
The policy of the Trustee is to transfer funds only where they comply with the Ordinance and when
the Fund has sufficient liquidity. The Fund is not subject to significant liquidity risk as all funds remain

invested and its liabilities are minimal.

Account and other payables are due within 12 months and interest-free.
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OCEAN PARK TRUST FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11.

1.3

Financial Risk Management - Continued

Fair value measurement

Fair value of the Fund'’s financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

Some of the Fund’s financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the
level of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable.

Fair value at

30th June 30th June Fairvalue  Valuation technique(s)
Financial assets 2020 2019 hierarchy  and key inputs
HK$'000 HK$'000
Listed unit trust 14,890 17,402 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in active
classified as financial markets.
instruments
Unlisted unit trust 50,002 50,742 Level 2 Fair value derived from

classified as financial observable market values

instruments of underlying assets quoted
by relevant stock exchanges
at the end of the reporting
period.

There were no significant unobservable inputs used in determining the fair value of the above financial assets
or liabilities. There were no transfers into and out of Level 1 and Level 2 during the years ended 30th June
2020 and 2019.
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Ocean Park Hong Kong
EREFELE

180 Wong Chuk Hang Road
Aberdeen, Hong Kong
BERFEMRE-BN\TR

Tel E&E : (852) 3923 2888
Fax X : (852) 2873 5584
www.oceanpark.com.hk
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